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On behalf of Life Healthcare Group Limited (formerly known as Tack Fiori
International Group Limited, the “Company”), | present to the shareholders
the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

OVERVIEW

Life Healthcare Group Limited and its subsidiaries is a provider focusing on
genetic testing and health data analysis services. Through its non-invasive tumor
genetic testing technology and professional team, the Group is committed to
the promotion and application of genetic testing in clinical medicine and related
healthcare services, with the broader aim of becoming the provider of a full range
of services and solutions for medical and health administration. The Group has its
networks across China mainland, and has set up medical laboratories in Beijing,
Hangzhou, Tianjin and Guangzhou.

Apart from healthcare services, the Group is also engaged in money lending
business, education software products and related services, apparel retail business
and securities trading and investments business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Turnover

For the year ended 31| March 2017, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately HK$28.30 million (year ended 31 March 2016: approximately
HK$5.1'1 million), representing an increase of approximately 453.82% as
compared to the corresponding period last year. The remarkable increase in
turnover was primarily due to that the Group started its healthcare services
business in the second quarter of 2016, which accounted for approximately
68.48% of the Group's total turover.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded gross profit of
approximately HK$9.28 million (year ended 31 March 2016: approximately
HK$3.83 million), representing an increase of approximately 142.30% as
compared to the corresponding period last year. The increase in gross profit was
mainly due to the increase in gross profit from the Group'’s healthcare business

and money lending business.

Loss before taxation

The loss before taxation for the year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$39.16 million (year ended 31 March 2016: approximately HK$34.34
million), representing an increase of approximately 14.04% as compared to the
corresponding period last year. The increase in loss before taxation was mainly
attributable to (i) the decrease in other income and gain as a result of a gain on
derecognition of net liabilities from deregistration of a subsidiary of apparel retail
business for the year ended 31 March 2016; (ii) the increase in selling, distribution
costs and administrative expenses as a result of the increase in marketing and
promotion expenses from healthcare business; (i) the increase in share of
loss from an associate including the share of amortisation of intangible assets
of approximately HK$3.72 million, partially offset by (i) the increase in gross
profit as a result of gross profit generated from the Group's healthcare business
and money lending business; and (ii) the decrease in impairment on goodwill
and inventories provided for the Group’s apparel retail business and education
software products and related service business.
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Loss per share

Loss per share (basic and diluted) for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK1.30 cents (year ended 31 March 2016: approximately HK1.32
cents), representing a decrease in loss of approximately 1.52% as compared to
the corresponding period last year. The decrease in loss per share (basic and
diluted) was mainly attributable to the increase in the weighted average number
of ordinary shares as result of shares issued in relation to the acquisition of 30%
equity interest in & )18 3 4 )15 B 5T A IR 22 B] Guangzhou Manrui Biotech
Company Limited (“Manrui Biotech”) on 5 August 2016 and rights issue of the
Company completed on 8 March 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Healthcare services in PRC

On 5 April 2016, the Group entered into a set of structural contracts through its
wholly-owned subsidiary (namely, 3t 7% % A1 & [ 2 & £l £ A IR 2 7] Beijing
Life Healthcare Technology Co, Ltd*) (“Beijing Lianhe”), with 3 1 (1t ;1) &
B R B BR 2 A Life Healthcare (Beijing) Co., Ltd* (*Life Healthcare) and its
shareholders, pursuant to which Beijing Lianhe has obtained the effective control
over Life Healthcare and a right to receive substantially all of Life Healthcare's

economic benefits.

In the second half of 2016, the Group began to set up laboratories and equip
the laboratories with those devices to be used in genetic testing and health
data analysis. After making sufficient market survey and research, the Group has
worked out its sales strategy. Consequently, the Group started to build its sales
force near the end of 2016 and had received detection samples since then. With
its well-developed technologies, the Group's services of genetic testing and health
data analysis cover those cancer cases with a high incidence rate in PRC and
are able to provide valuable reference and guidance to doctors in the medical
treatment of their cancer patients.

Additionally, in April 2016, the Group set up a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Ao E 7 % B R A 8 Tianjin Life Healthcare Software Development
Co,, Ltd* ("TJLH"). TJLH provides technical services to convert health enquiries
from public, via various health application/website platforms provided by suppliers,
in a user-friendly format and distribute to the customers, i.e. — hospitals where
the hospitals could explore their potential patients by providing consultation
services via the health applications/website platforms provided by suppliers. The
services of TJLH will be charged by way of prepayment of the hospital for the
purchase of online chats.

¥ For identification purposes only 1 {8 51|
6
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For the year ended 31 March 2017, turnover from healthcare services
(representing the turnover generated by (i) genetic testing and health data
analysis services and (i) technical services to convert health enquiries from public
and distribute to hospitals) was approximately HK$19.38 million (year ended 31
March 2016 nil). Healthcare services segment recorded a loss of approximately
HK$16.92 million during the year ended 31 March 2017 (year ended 3| March
2016: nil) and such loss was primarily resulted from: (i) cost of materials and
services of HK$15.99 million; (i) marketing and promotion expenses of HK$2.96
million; (iii) salary, wages and insurance of employees of HK$7.66 million; (iv)
cost of office rental and amortization of office renovation of HK$3.04 million: and
(v) legal and professional expenses of HK$0.83 million, partially offset by a gross
revenue of HK$19.38 million.

Money lending business

In order to diversify and strengthen its revenue streams to maximise retums to
the Company's shareholders, in particular, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) have identified money lending business to be an area where the
Group can generate regular and long-term sustainable income. The Group has
also obtained a money lenders license in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in November 2016 with a
view to develop its money lending business.

Turnover from money lending business represents the interest income generated
from loans advanced to the customers of the Group. For the year ended 31
March 2017, the Group recorded turnover of approximately HK$7.02 million (year
ended 31 March 2016: nil) and segment profit of approximately HK$4.85 million
(vear ended 31 March 2016: nil).

Education software products and related service business in PRC

Turnover from education software products and related service business was
approximately HK$1.42 million (year ended 31 March 2016: approximately
HK$4.79 million), representing a decrease of approximately 70.35% as
compared to the corresponding period last year. This segment recorded a loss
of approximately HK$4.00 million during the year ended 31 March 2017 (year
ended 31 March 2016: loss of approximately HK$8.30 million), representing a
decrease in loss of approximately 51.81% as compared to the corresponding
period last year. The decrease in the segment loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 was mainly attributable to the goodwill impairment of approximately
HK$3.84 million and allowance for inventories of approximately HK$2.93 million
recognised during the year ended 3| March 2016.
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Apparel retail business in PRC

Turnover from apparel retail business was approximately HK$0.48 million (year
ended 31 March 2016: approximately HK$0.33 million), representing an increase
of approximately 45.45% as compared to the corresponding period last year. The
segment recorded a loss of approximately HK$1.85 million during the year ended
31 March 2017 (year ended 31 March 2016: loss of approximately HK$3.67
million), representing a decrease in loss of approximately 49.59% as compared
to the corresponding period last year. The decrease in the segment loss for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was mainly due to the inventory impairment of
approximately HK$0.88 million recognised in the corresponding period last year
and decrease in employee costs of approximately HK$0.44 million as compared
to the year ended 31 March 2016.

Securities trading and investments business in Hong Kong

The Group did not engage in any securities trading and investment activity during
the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, and the Group will reserve this
segment as a treasury activity.

PROSPECTS

Healthcare services in PRC

The Directors continue to identify and evaluate opportunities for the Group
to diversify and strengthen its revenue streams to maximise returns to the
Company's shareholders and have, in particular, identified potential investment
opportunities in the healthcare industry.

According to ¥ Bl B F i Bl T35 R A T BR S R B 2 0 i 5 (2017-
20204 ) “China Genetic Testing Market Research and Development Report
(2017-2020)", genetic testing industry increased rapidly in recent years and has a
very promising future. There are nearly one fifth population, approximately 300
million people, in PRC need genetic testing services. The market capacity will
be hundreds of billions RMB. There will be five to ten companies with market
value over RMBI billion in this market, in the meantime, there will be up to 50
companies with market value over RMBI0 million. Since 2014, PRC announced
many regulation policies to standardize this market. In 2017, the market size of
genetic testing in PRC will be RMBI3 billion. The compound annual growth rate
will be 36.86% from 2017 to 2021, leading to the market size reaching RMB42
billion in 2021.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) considers healthcare services market is a
new and growing field and intends to strengthen the healthcare services segment.
The Group will focus on (i) the expansion of the genetic testing and health data
analysis business with the broader aim of becoming the provider of a full range
of services and solutions for medical and health administration; (ii) dedicated
to provision of the transition services for hospitals, with the aim of building a
stronger and closer business relationship with doctors and hospitals.

Money lending business

In consideration of efficient use of proceeds, the Directors will further develop
money lending business segment, diversify the customer portfolio and seek new
opportunities to cooperate with its business partners. Going forward, money
lending business will continue to be one of the business segments of the Group
and contribute stable interest income to the Group.

Securities trading and investments business in Hong Kong

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group had no securities trading and
investment activities, while the management is cautious about the performance
of the securities trading market and the Group will continue to adopt a prudent
approach in securities trading business with a view to strengthen the shareholders’

value in the long run.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

In consideration of providing the Company with a more defined corporate image
and identity in its healthcare services business which will benefit the Company's
future business development, on 30 March 2017, the Board proposed to change
the name of the Company from "Tack Fiori International Group Limited” to
“Life Healthcare Group Limited” and to adopt "E M EBEREEB AR A
A]" as the Chinese name of the Company (the “Change of Company Name").
Resolution to approve the Change of Company Name was duly passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 2 May 2017.
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The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name dated 2 May 2017 was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands and the Certificate of
Registration of Change of Corporate Name of Non-Hong Kong Company dated
26 May 2017 was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong.

The stock short name of the Company has changed from ‘Tack Fiori” and * 2 55
%X to “Life Healthcare” and “ 3 F1 58 & " with effect from 8 June 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION

AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Acquisition of Manrui Biotech

On 5 August 2016, the Group acquired an aggregate of 30% equity interest in
Guangzhou Manrui Biotech Company Limited (“Manrui Biotech™”) from two
independent third parties at an agreed consideration of RMB60 million satisfied
by (i) cash consideration of RMB3.75 million; and (i) allotment and issue of
245,890,890 consideration shares by the Company at the issue price of HK$0.266
each.

Manrui Biotech specialises in research and development of gene testing
technologies, specifically relating to non-invasive cancer detection through gene
testing.

The acquisition of Manrui Biotech constituted a discloseable transaction under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (The “Listing Rules”). For details of the said
acquisition, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated | August
2016 and 9 August 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there was no significant investment, material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies for the year ended 31
March 2017.
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RESULTS OF RIGHTS ISSUE

On 22 December 2016, the Board proposed to implement the rights issue on
the basis of one rights share for every one share of the Company held on the
record date at the subscription price of HK$0.126 per rights share (the “Rights
Issue”). Resolution to approve the Rights Issue and the transactions contemplated
thereunder was duly passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 7 February 2017. 2,390,312,650 rights shares (the "Rights Shares”)
were issued to the qualifying shareholders upon the Rights Issue becoming
unconditional on 7 March 2017, Immediately after completion of the Rights Issue,
the number of issued shares of the Company increased from 2,390,312,650
shares to 4,780,625,300 shares, and the board lot size of the Company’s shares
for trading on the Stock Exchange has been changed from 4,000 shares to 20,000
shares. The net proceeds from the Rights Issue have been applied pursuant to the
use of proceeds set out in the rights issue prospectus of the Company dated 16
February 2017 (the “Rights Issue Prospectus”). During the year ended 31 March
2017, the outstanding debts of approximately HK$1 10 million have been repaid
off (including interest). For further details of the Rights Issue, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 22 December 2016, 4 January 2017, |
February 2017, 7 February 2017 and 8 March 2017, the circular of the Company
dated 18 January 2017 and the Rights Issue Prospectus.
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PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND ADVANCE

TO ENTITIES
The Group has entered into a number of loan agreements as lender during

the year ended 31 March 2017 and, amongst others, the details of those loan

agreements which constituted discloseable transactions for the Company under

Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

12

On 9 September 2016, Tack Fiori International Group Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company ("‘Tack Fiori"), as lender, entered into
two loan agreements with, among others, two independent borrowers in
relation to (i) a loan of HK$20 million for a term of 3 months at an annual
interest rate of 19% secured by the entire equity interest in the borrower;
and (i) a loan of HK$17.2 million for a term of 3 months at an annual
interest rate of 19% secured by 55% equity interest in the borrower.

On 30 September 2016, Tack Fiori, as lender, entered into a loan
agreement with, among others, an independent borrower in relation to a
loan of HK$20 million for a term of 3 months at an annual interest rate of 9%
secured by a property in Hong Kong owned by the borrower.

On 17 October 2016, Tack Fiori, as lender, entered into two loan
agreements with, among others, two independent borrowers in relation to
(i) aloan of HK$20 million for a term of 3 months at an annual interest rate
of 19% secured by the entire equity interest in the borrower; and (i) a loan
of HK$10 million for a term of 3 months at an annual interest rate of 19%
secured by 5% equity interest of a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability wholly-owned by the borrower.
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The aforesaid loan agreements also constituted advances to entities under
Rules 13.13 and 13.15 of the Listing Rules. For details of the loan agreements,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 9 September 2016, 3
October 2016, 30 September 2016 and 17 October 2016.

There are six borrowers with an aggregate loan amount of approximately HK$76
million have defaulted in repayment on due dates and the loans remained
outstanding as at 31 March 2017. These loans were subsequently settled before
the date of this report. No borrower has defaulted in repayment that has resulted
in bad debts since the Group commenced the money lending business.

CHANGES IN BOARD COMPOSITION, COMPANY
SECRETARY, FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY

Changes in board composition, company secretary, financial controller and
authorised representative of the Company during the year ended 3| March 2017
are set out below:

(@)  On 22 August 2016, Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond tendered his resignation
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”).

(b) From 22 August 2016, Ms. Zhang Xuyang has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee.

() On 22 August 2016, Mr. Wang Liang tendered his resignation as the
vice-chairman of the Board, a non-executive Director and an authorised
representative of the Company.

(d)  From 22 August 2016, Ms. Shan Hua, an executive Director, has been
appointed as an authorised representative of the Company.
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(e)

On 12 September 2016, Mr. Lau Yu tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

From 12 September 2016, Mr. Liu Xinghua has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

From 12 September 2016, Mr. Zhou Jian has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

On 12 September 2016, Ms. Cheng Pui Yee tendered her resignation as
the company secretary, an authorised representative and financial controller
of the Company.

From 12 September 2016, Mr. Chung Yau Tong has been appointed as the
company secretary, an authorised representative and financial controller of
the Company.

On 17 March 2017, Mr. Chung Yau Tong tendered his resignation as the
company secretary, an authorised representative and financial controller of
the Company.

From 17 March 2017, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun has been appointed as the
company secretary and an authorised representative of the Company.

CHANGE OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The address of the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong has
been changed to Unit 3, 10th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Center, No.
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 24 February 2017.
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CHANGE OF NAME AND ADDRESS OF SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER AGENT IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

The name and address of the Company's share registrar and transfer agent in the
Cayman Islands has been changed to SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited and Royal
Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman,
KYI-1110, Cayman lslands, respectively, with effect from 12 May 2017.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group seeks to generate profits in its core businesses through the efficient
employment of treasury activities. Treasury activities, if and when undertaken by
the Group, aims to enhance the return on surplus cash and to assist those core
businesses to run smoothly. Efficient management of surplus cash is achieved by
conducting short-term treasury activities when opportunities arise.

All subsidiaries should comply with the Group's treasury objective and policy.
The Group has designated subsidiaries to carry out certain short-term treasury
activities including securities investment and money lending activities, which
formed one of the Group's principal activities to broaden the Group'’s revenue
base and achieve better shareholders’ return. The investment securities activities
and money lending activities will only be conducted after having considered the
actual working capital needs of the Group. Both the treasury activities and the
investment policy are subject to review from time to time.

As the deposit rate offered by licensed bank in Hong Kong is minimal, the Group
will continue, in the ordinary course of business of the Group, to use its surplus
cash to conduct treasury activities if and when opportunities arise. The Group
foresees potentially attractive retumn can be generated from treasury activities.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The management and control of the Group's financial and capital management
are centralised at its headquarter in PRC. The Group adheres to the principle
of prudent financial management to minimise financial and operational risks. The
Group mainly relies upon internally generated funds and proceeds from fund

raising activities to finance its operations and expansion.
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As of 31 March 2017, the Group's net current assets were approximately
HK$301.49 million including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$209.76 million (31 March 2016: net current assets of approximately
HK$63.60 million including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$65.8 1
million and loan from a director of HK$20 million).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

As of 31 March 2017, the Group had capital commitments to acquire property,
plant and equipment amounting to HK$3.33 million (31 March 2016: to acquire
intangible asset amounting to HK$18.70 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As of 31 March 2017, the Group had not pledged any of its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As of 31 March 2017, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group collects most of its revenue and incurs most of the expenditures in
RMB or HK$. The Directors consider that the Group's foreign currency exchange
risk is insignificant as the majority of the Group's transactions are denominated
in functional currency of each individual group entity. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 March 2017, the Group had || | full-time employees excluding Directors
(31 March 2016: 48 employees). Total remuneration of employees for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was approximately HK$13.9 million (year ended 31 March
2016: approximately HK$9 million). The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, working experience and prevailing market standards.
Employee benefits include share option scheme, medical insurance coverage
and mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong employees, and “Five Social
Insurances and One Housing Fund” for PRC employees, which is comprised of
basic endowment insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, matemity insurance and Housing Provident Fund,
respectively.

16

RZE—+E=A=+—-H K&EEZ
RENE EIFE X A301,490000/8 7T 0 BIE
Be RBE &S EY120976000078 (=
Z-REZA=Z+-B: RPEEFAE
4636000008 L BREREAREEE
WH65810000B T RIKE —REEZE
220,00000078 7T,) °

BN AE
R-ZE—+E=A=+—-H K&EEH
BAFEAREDE « BB KR H#3,330000
BT ZE-—RNEF=ZRA=1+—0 UEE
T/ & EE 18,700,000 7T) ©

BEERHA
R_E—+tF=A=+—H x5EY
ERREEMEE -

ZRER
RZZ—t+E=A=+—0 XEEY
BEASAAE-

o1 B . By

AEBMEBRZ KB BERAEEZ
RO XEHAARBLBTEE &
ERA ARAEEREDIXHNAEHE
FISBEER KSR E HAKE
ZHOERBUAERN - AEEBAIVE
WEHRRR- AW EERBERINE
Bl THREREREEHHENIN
R o

BERHFMBEK
RZBE—+E=A=+—H BREHH-
AEERERINEZZBEE(ZE—X
F=ZF=1+—H:48%E8) - BE_-Z
—+E=A=+—BLFE EEFM
BN A139000008 T (BE T — X
FZA=ZF+—HIEFE : 459000000
L) AEEREBEEEZRR TIEER
EBITMGEZEAETREREMES -BEER
FIBEERENS AEAREMRLZ
BEERRRBHIEATEEAR AR EHE
EmMRzIER—¢ g9 2R eEE
AEZRE EABBERR KEIH
R EERERERERERAES -



ENEREREEARRAS
017 FFEWME

Management Discussion and Analysis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Zhang Xuyang (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Zhou Jian
and Mr. Zheng Chunlei, with the chairman possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting expertise.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2017.

APPRECIATION

Taking this opportunity, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation to our shareholders for their continuous support and the Company's
management and employees for their dedication and hard work.

On behalf of the Board
Life Healthcare Group Limited

Hua Yunbo
Chairman and President

Hong Kong, 27 June 2017
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hua Yunbo (“Mr. Hua”), aged 40, holds a Bachelor degree in computer
software from Beijing University. Mr. Hua was appointed as an executive
Director, the President of the Company and Chairman of the Board in February
2016. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Hua has over
|5 years experience in medical and healthcare online platform related industry.
He was the founder, director and general manager of Beijing Tianya Co., Ltd*
GERXEE BB 4B R 2 A]). Merry Cycle Enterprises Limited is wholly-
owned by Mr. Hua. Powerful Software Limited is 65% owned by Merry Cycle
Enterprises Limited and held 909,376,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 19.02% of the issued shares of the Company, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO). Mr.
Hua is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company held
by Powerful Software Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Shan Hua (“Ms. Shan”), aged 39, holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
SouthWest Jiaotong University and a Master of Civil Procedure Law degree
from the SouthWest University of Political Science of Law. Ms. Shan was
appointed as an executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company
in December 2015. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee
and an authorised representative of the Company. Ms. Shan has over 10 years
experience working as senior management at listed companies. She had worked
as senior management in NQ Mobile Inc,, a company whose shares are listed
on New York Stock Exchange and Asialnfo-Linkage Inc.. Gorgeous Moment
Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. Shan. Powerful Software Limited is 35%
owned by Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited and held 909,376,000 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 19.02% of the issued shares of the
Company, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO. Ms. Shan is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company held by Powerful Software Limited for the purpose of the
SFO.

* For translation purpose only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Feng Xiaogang (“Dr. Feng”), aged 51, holds a Bachelor degree in Law from
the Tianjin Normal University, a Master degree in Business Administration from
the University of Science and Technology Beijing and a Doctor of Philosophy
degree in Management from Twintech International University College of
Technology. Dr. Feng was appointed as an executive Director in December 2014
and was re-designated as a non-executive Director in February 2016. Dr. Feng
has extensive experience in investment and management. Dr. Feng currently
acts as an investment consultant for various companies in the PRC and overseas.
During the period from 2001 to 2013, he was a senior management of Ambow
Education Holding Ltd. (“Ambow Education”), a company whose shares are listed
on New York Stock Exchange. During the period at Ambow Education, Dr. Feng
was involved in various fund raising projects, mergers and acquisitions involving
educational institutions in PRC. Prior to joining Ambow Education, Dr. Feng also
worked in a PRC government entity and various international companies mainly

responsible for investment and business management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xinghua (“Mr. Liu”), aged 60, holds a bachelor degree in Chinese
language and literature from Beijing Normal University in the PRC, and was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 12 September 2016. Mr. Liu is currently
a senior management of a fund company. Mr. Liu was with Industrial Bank Co.,,
Ltd. since August 2001 to August 2016, where he held the position of president
of Beijing Dongdan sub-branch, Shijingshan Science & Technology Park sub-
branch and Fengtai sub-branch. Mr. Liu has approximately 30 years' experience in
the financial services industry.
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Mr. Zhou Jian (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 44, holds a Master's degree in Economics
from the Central University of Finance and Economics, the PRC, Mr. Zhou
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 12 September 2016. Mr. Zhou is currently an executive director and the
chief operating officer of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (Stock code: 332).
Mr. Zhou was also a senior manager in the oil storage and distribution divisions
of Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (Stock code: 1192). Mr. Zhou has over
|5 years of extensive working experience in the operation and management
of companies, and many years working experience of senior management in
Hong Kong listed companies, and is familiar with the operation, compliance and
governance of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Zheng Chunlei (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 41, holds a Master degree in computer
science and technology from Peking University. Mr. Zheng was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2014 and is a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zheng has over 10
years experience in information technology industry and has extensive experience
in management and product development in information technology and mobile
game industry.

Ms. Zhang Xuyang (‘“Ms. Zhang”), aged 38, holds a Master degree of
management and bachelor degree of economics from Tsinghua University. Ms.
Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration Committee with effect from
22 August 2016. Ms. Zhang has over 14 years of working experience in auditing,
accounting, corporate finance and financial management, in both private and listed
companies and also international audit firm.
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The Board submits their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) healthcare services in PRC; (ii) money lending business;
(iii) education software products and related service business in PRC; (iv) apparel
retail business in PRC; and (v) securities trading and investments business in Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Board considers healthcare services is a new and growing field and intends to
strengthen the healthcare services segment. Details of the future development of
the Group's business are set out in the paragraph headed "Prospects” under the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31| March 2017, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately HK$28.30 million, gross profit of approximately HK$9.28 million,
and loss before taxation of approximately HK$39.16 million.

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 68.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).
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RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the reserves available
for distribution to shareholders of the Company as at 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$374.68 million.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 3| March 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 72 and section headed “Information About the Financial
Position of the Company” respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out in section headed "Five Year Financial Summary"
on page |54.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TRADEMARK
Details of movements in the trademark of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has conducted share issue
as follows:

(a) allotment and issue of 245,890,890 ordinary shares of the Company at the
issue price of HK$0.266 each (closing price at | August 2016: HK$0.26 per
share) as part of the consideration for the acquisition of 30% equity interest
in Manrui Biotech; and

(b) allotment and issue of 2,390,312,650 ordinary shares of the Company
at the subscription price of HK$0.126 per rights share under the Rights
Issue for fund raising purpose, with gross proceeds and net proceeds of
approximately HK$301 million and HK$292 million respectively.
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Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year ended 3| March 2017 are set out in notes 27 and 28 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

During the year ended 3| March 2017t RERMERBERREAR A
] (Beijing Life Healthcare Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Beijing Lianhe"), a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into the Exclusive Cooperation
Agreement, the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the Power of Attorney and
the Share Pledge Agreement on 10 November 2016 which supersede, the
original agreements dated 5 April 2016, (together, the "VIE Agreements” and
each a “VIE Agreement”) by and among Beijing Lianhe, EH (dt7) BERl
BB AT (Life Healthcare (Beijing) Co., Ltd.) ("Life Healthcare”) and the two
registered shareholders (namely, Mr. Cheng Xiaoyu and Mr. Zhao Fei, both are
not connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company) of
Life Healthcare (the “Registered Shareholders”) who hold all the equity capital
of Life Healthcare.

Life Healthcare was established on 22 February 2016 and its principal activities
are provision of genetic testing and health data analysis services (the “Relevant
Business”). Pursuant to the Catalog of Industries for Foreign Investment (2015
Amendment) issued by National Development and Reform Commission and
Ministry of Commerce of PRC on |0 March 2015 and effected on 10 April 2015,
the “development and application of human stem cells and genetic diagnosis
therapy technology” is listed as an item in the forbidden catalog for foreign
investment. By entering into the VIE Agreements, the Group obtained effective
control over Life Healthcare and the right to receive substantially all of Life
Healthcare's economic benefits (the “Contractual Arrangements”). Details of
each of the VIE Agreements are set out below.
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Under the Exclusive Cooperation Agreement entered into by Beijing Lianhe and
Life Healthcare, Beijing Lianhe shall, within the validity period of such agreement,
provide Life Healthcare and its designated subsidiaries with comprehensive
business support, technical and consulting services and Life Healthcare shall pay
a monthly consulting and service fee, which shall be equal to the amount of Life
Healthcare's monthly total income deducting the expenses and costs directly
incurred thereby. In addition, Life Healthcare agreed that, without the prior
written approval by Beijing Lianhe, it shall not enter into any transaction which
may materially affect its assets, obligations, rights, or business operations, so as to
ensure the performance of business agreements between both parties and the
payment of each price payable. For those matters related to business operation
and asset disposal, Life Healthcare shall act in accordance with the instructions
and requests by Beijing Lianhe.

Under the Exclusive Call Option Agreement entered into by and among
Beijing Lianhe, Life Healthcare and the Registered Shareholders, the Registered
Shareholders granted an irrevocable option to Beijing Lianhe and/or other entity
or individual as designated by it to acquire all or any of their equity interests
in Life Healthcare, in one or more steps as determined by Beijing Lianhe in its
absolute and sole discretion, to the extent as permissible under the PRC laws.
The agreement shall be terminated when all equity interests in Life Healthcare
have been lawfully transferred to Beijing Lianhe and/or other entity or individual
designated by Beijing Lianhe. At the time of exercising the option, the transfer
price for the acquisition (the “Transfer Price”) payable by Beijing Lianhe and/
or its designated entity or individual shall be RMBI. If there is any mandatory
requirement with respect to the Transfer Price under PRC laws then effective,
the Transfer Price shall be the minimum price as permitted under PRC laws.
The Registered Shareholders have undertaken and agreed that, since they have
already been reimbursed by Beijing Lianhe and its affiliated companies, they
will refund all Transfer Price to Beijing Lianhe and/or its designated entity or
individual within 10 business days after they receive the Transfer Price. Further,
in the event that Life Healthcare is in liquidation or bankruptcy, the Registered
Shareholders shall ensure that the residual assets of Life Healthcare (the assets
after the payments for liquidation costs, wages, social insurance premiums and
statutory compensations, taxes owed and debts payable) shall be transferred
to Beijing Lianhe and/or its designated entity or individual at minimum price as
permitted under PRC laws. The asset transfer is nonreciprocal. The Registered
Shareholders have undertaken to ensure that such transfer will not create any
obligation of Beijing Lianhe to the Registered Shareholders and their creditors or
Life Healthcare and its creditors.
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It is further agreed that the Registered Shareholders and Life Healthcare shall
act in accordance with the request of Beijing Lianhe with regard to the sale,
transfer, pledge or disposal through other means of Life Healthcare's assets,
businesses or revenue. Without consent from Beijing Lianhe, Life Healthcare
cannot sell, transfer, pledge or dispose of any of its assets, business or revenue,
nor can it enter into any significant contracts (defined as those with contract
sum of exceeding RMB100,000). Finally, the Registered Shareholders agreed that
they shall appoint persons designated by Beijing Lianhe as board directors, legal
representative and key management personnel of Life Healthcare.

Under the Power of Attorney entered into by Beijing Lianhe and the Registered
Shareholders, the directors and their successors of Beijing Lianhe (including a
liquidator replacing the directors) shall be authorised to be the sole proxy and
authorised person of the Registered Shareholders to exercise all shareholder's
rights over Life Healthcare with respect to all the relevant matters, including
but not limited to: |) to attend shareholder's meetings of Life Healthcare; 2) to
exercise all shareholder's rights and voting rights of the Registered Shareholders
as entitled by the articles of association of Life Healthcare and PRC laws,
including without limitation the transfer, pledge and disposal of all or part of
the equity interest in Life Healthcare; and 3) to appoint and designate the legal
representative (the chairman of the board of directors), directors, supervisors,
chief executive officer and other senior managers of Life Healthcare.

Under the Share Pledge Agreement entered into by Beijing Lianhe and the
Registered Shareholders, the Registered Shareholders pledged all their equity
interests in Beijing Lianhe to guarantee the performance of (i) the payment for
consulting and service fee of Life Healthcare under the Exclusive Cooperation
Agreement; (i) the obligations of the Registered Shareholders under the Exclusive
Call Option Agreement, and (iii) the obligations under the Power of Attorney.
Beijing Lianhe shall be entitled to dispose of the pledged equity where Life
Healthcare fails to fully pay for the consulting and service fee payable under the
Exclusive Cooperation Agreement or violates the obligations under the Exclusive
Cooperation Agreement, Exclusive Call Option Agreement and Power of
Attormey. The equity interests in Life Healthcare shall not be transferred without
Beijing Lianhe's written consent.

Save as disclosed above, there has not been any material change in the
Contractual Agreements during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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The Group has obtained a legal opinion from a PRC law firm, King & Wood
Mallesons (“KWM") on the VIE Agreements according to the Company Law of
the PRC (the “Company Law"), the Contract Law of the PRC (the “Contract
Law") and other PRC laws, administrative regulations, administrative rules. KWM
has provided its legal opinion that, in view of (1) Beijing Lianhe did not have
actual investment in Life Healthcare; (2) Life Healthcare did not provide any
relevant information to overseas entities in violation of the relevant rules while
carrying out the specific genetic testing business; (3) entering into each of the VIE
agreements by the parties was solely for the purpose of providing/receiving the
relevant services and receiving/paying the relevant service fees and each party
shall comply with such arrangements by entering into the relevant agreements,
the signing each of the VIE Agreements is not illegal and the parties can validly
enter into each of the VIE agreements without the need to obtain approval from
any of the PRC government bodies. Further, each of the VIE Agreements is not
regarded as an “investment” by Beijing Lianhe in Life Healthcare and/or its actual
business, which is forbidden foreign investment under the applicable PRC laws
and regulations. Finally, the legal opinion also stated that each VIE agreement
and its confirmation letter is not in breach of or in default under any PRC laws,
and that each of the VIE Agreements is legally valid and enforceable. KWM
has indicated that it cannot be precluded that the relevant foreign investment
and health authorities’ understanding of the relevant laws and regulations may
different from its above legal opinions.

Life Healthcare has been accounted a 100% owned subsidiary of the Group for
in the condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group, on the basis
that the Group has effective control over Life Healthcare and the right to receive
substantially all of Life Healthcare's economic benefits. The Board has determined
that due to each of the VIE Agreements, which KWM has advised are legally valid
and enforceable, Beijing Lianhe has existing rights and ability to direct the relevant
activities of Life Healthcare, ie the activities that significantly affect Life Healthcare's
returns. Further, Beijing Lianhe has exposure, or rights, to variable retumns from its
involvement with Life Healthcare as under the Exclusive Cooperation Agreement
entered into between Beijing Lianhe and Life Healthcare, Life Healthcare shall
pay a monthly consulting and service fee equal to the amount of Life Healthcare's
monthly total income after deducting the expenses and costs directly incurred
thereby. The control activities carried out by Beijing Lianhe, and how well it
controls and manages the activities and operations of Life Healthcare, will directly
affect the amount of its returns.
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The Board is of the view that healthcare services especially the genetic testing and
health data analysis services market in PRC is expected a new but growing field.
Healthcare service segment recorded revenue in a total amount of HK$19.38
million in the year ended 31 March 2017 and has become the most important
business segment of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, Life Healthcare and its subsidiaries recorded
revenue and assets of approximately HK$1.38 million and HK$38.27 million
respectively.

Major risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements are summarized as
follows: although KWM had expressed the view that the entering of each of
the Contractual Arrangements is not in contravention of the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, uncertainties however do exist regarding the interpretation and
application of the PRC laws and regulations. If the PRC government determines
that the Contractual Arrangements do not comply with the applicable laws and
regulations of the PRC or issues further guidelines that impose stricter foreign
ownership requirements in the Relevant Business, the Group's Relevant Business
may be adversely affected. If that happens, the Company will seek other forms of
contractual arrangements if then available to carry out the Relevant Business.

The Company has implemented the following internal control measures to
safeguard its assets held through the Contractual Arrangements: (i) the officers
of the Company in charge of Life Healthcare will regularly review the relevant
parties’ compliance with the Contractual Arrangements and other related matters,
monitor the development of the Relevant Business and will report regularly to
the Board; (i) professional parties will be engaged to assist the Board to handle
any specific issues arising from the Contractual Arrangements; (iii) the Company
has controlled the board of directors of Beijing Lianhe, Life Healthcare and its
subsidiaries; (iv) the auditors of the Company will be engaged to provide for the
annual confirmations in compliance with Paragraph 16(c) of the Guidance Letter;
and (v) Life Healthcare will prepare and provide monthly management accounts
and key operating data to the Company.
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During the year ended 3| March 2017, none of the VIE Agreements mentioned
above has been unwound as none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of
structured contracts has been removed.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has identified principal risks and uncertainties that the Group faces
as a business. These include economic risks, operational risks, regulatory risks, and
financial risks. The Group's business, future results of operations and prospects
could be materially and adversely affected by those risks and uncertainties. The
following highlights the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group and it is not
meant to be exhaustive. There may be other risks and uncertainties which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now but tumn out to be
material in the future.

Economic Risks
—  Assevere or prolonged downturn of the global or PRC economy.

—  Negative effect on our operational, financing or investing activities due to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, inflation, fluctuations of
interest rates and other measures relating to financial policies in PRC.

Operational Risks
—  Failure to compete in the competitive environment which the Group
operates in or to keep up with technological developments.

—  Unexpected network interruptions or undetected programming errors or
defects.

Regulatory Risks
—  Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain or maintain all
applicable permits and approvals.

— Adverse effects arising from change in laws and regulations affecting our
businesses.

Financial Risks

—  Detalils of financial risks are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

28

BE_ZT—+tF=-A=t—RHLFE"

$E£4HiLVIET5%§*Z¥ﬁ$B$ RABHEM
EURMEBIERDZBH -

Bk R AH#E S
ARAEHNAERMEH 2 FER0R
&Tﬁgiﬁ @%%ﬁ/ﬂ B ,@%@,Bﬁ
EERREMBRER RAEBZRS-
ixm“ﬁﬁﬁm A g Az SRR
RAEEUEMXANERNNTE - TX
RBITAKEMEY 2 T BER LT
EEN HEE2EIT HARERE
AEBRANGRERVERNEBRKERF
BAZEMEAR R THEEL -

mARR
2RASEEERELRRE R
— SMEEREEE FERBR

Et R eRBRAB R EY
BE HMHEIREERDER AR

2 &
%Mﬂﬁ

AEEFREEREMAEZRFER
FERBFRELPRER -

— EWERZEKTHRREERL
2P aRAT iR R AERTA

EEmR
— REBEMETIEE AP KR ERE
15 34 15 P B B R AT ) Bt

— REERBARRAVEREDM
BT E

Jﬁﬂﬁ
Bjﬁﬂ )\/\Fl ﬁ
uEE6°

A M B RR M



ENVIRONMENT AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Group is committed to minimising the impact on the environment from its
business activities. As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the accomplishment of its employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and training
appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace
for all employees. There had not been any cases of strikes or reports of fatality
due to workplace accidents during the year under review.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to meet our
customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through various means
and channels, to understand customer trends and needs, and regularly analyses on
customer feedbacks. The Group also conducts comprehensive quality assurance
checks to ensure that only quality products and services are offered to customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

On | August 2016, the Group entered into an agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) with a view to acquire an aggregate of 30% equity interest in
Manrui Biotech from two independent third parties at an agreed consideration of
RMB60 million to be satisfied by (i) cash consideration of RMB3.75 million; and
(i) allotment and issue of 245,890,890 ordinary shares by the Company at the
issue price of HK$0.266 each (the “Consideration Shares”). The details of the
Acquisition Agreement (including the conditions precedent under the Acquisition
Agreement) and the transactions contemplated thereunder are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated | August 2016. All the said conditions
precedent under the Acquisition Agreement had been fulfilled and completion of
the acquisition took place on 5 August 201 6.
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On 22 December 2016, the Company and Emperor Securities Limited entered
into the underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) in respect
of the underwriting arrangement for the Rights Issue. All the conditions set out
in the Underwriting Agreement have been fulfilled and the Rights Issue was
completed on 8 March 2017.

Saved for the Acquisition Agreement (having led to the issue of the
Consideration Shares), the Underwriting Agreement (in relation to the issue of
the Rights Shares) and the share option scheme of the Company, no equity-linked
agreement that would or might result in the Company issuing shares, or that
requiring the Company to enter into an agreement that would or might result in
the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2017 or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Hua Yunbo (Chairman and President)
Ms. Shan Hua (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Feng Xiaogang

Mr. Wang Liang (appointed as executive Director on | January 2014,
re-designated to non-executive Director on |5 February 2016
and resigned on 22 August 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xinghua (appointed on 12 September 2016)
Mr. Zhou Jian (appointed on 12 September 2016)
Mr. Zheng Chunlei

Ms. Zhang Xuyang (appointed on 22 August 2016)

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (appointed on |5 August 201 |
and resigned on 22 August 2016)

Mr. Lau Yu (appointed on 13 May 2014 and resigned on 12 September 2016)
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In accordance with Articles 83(3) and 84(l) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Liu Xinghua, Mr. Zhou Jian
and Ms. Zhang Xuyang will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has no fixed term of service with the Company and has not entered into a
service contract with the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company:
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BEARACHBERAA(ABER
A E833) 5 R B 84(1) fF - X 4L
£ BRATERKBHEZEIE —UER
EERRBFASER KEREER
RNZAE LERET-

f

REERRBFASERZRBERELL
B-UES BADATEETERGIT
BEBEERBEN -

EERNROREERD 2EZER A
y-)
R-ZE—+HE=A=+—H EEFRAK
RAITETHRABRARARHE B
B(TEREFRBEBRAEXVE) 2K
B HEROREFTERBELENA
RARBEBEFRBEROEINEFE
BRMRE EmARRME LR
ANEZENEFRINTETR(EE
FANENEARAIRBIM LR R
KEMT

REDIEBREENIBIZEBRZ
#R:

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholding
EEnA L4} FEEBEREE RESNEI L
Hua Yunbo Interest of controlled corporation 909,376,000 (Note)
TR REEE EE (B &) 19.02%
Shan Hua Interest of controlled corporation 909,376,000 (Note)
B REAE#En (Fff &£) 19.02%
Note: Bzt :

These interests are held by Powerful Software Limited which is owned as to 65% and 35% by
Merry Cycle Enterprises Limited and Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited respectively. Merry Cycle
Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Hua Yunbo while Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited
is wholly-owned by Ms. Shan Hua. Mr. Hua Yunbo and Ms. Shan Hua are therefore deemed to
be interested in all the shares of the Company held by Powerful Software Limited for the purpose
of the SFO. The interests held by Powerful Sofware Limited are disclosed under the section
headed "SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES" below.

% % 1& % B Powerful Software Limited % & + 1 3 2
8 % Bl #Merry Cycle Enterprises Limited } Gorgeous
Moment Holdings Limited # 5 65% [ 35%1& % © Merry
Cycle Enterprises Limted R =K R E 2 EHE -
Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited B R 8 4 & + 2 &
BE-RAI - RTEAZRBERABN £RK%E
BT B4 R R B B Powerful Software Limited 7
FE2BADERM + B A # % o Powerful Software
Limited TR T X [EERRREMA TR
M RBBERGD 2 RAR | —HHE -
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Save as disclosed above and in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2017 was the Company, any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in

or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the
Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year
ended 3| March 2017 and up to and including the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2017 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the following companies had interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company:
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FTERRREMATRROKRER
R zEER AR

R_F—tF=A=1+—H BEARA
REEFSNNEERIEBHEAFEL
Ean B WTRE(THES
IARRTETRAB)FAEARAD#
TR R ABRBRR D 5% 3R 2 s FUR R

REARFABREENIBTZEBRZ
BR:

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding
KRRE® a4 FEEERBE KRESNEIH
Powerful Software Limited (note) (Fff 5T) Beneficial owner
ESBEAA 909,376,000 19.02%
Merry Enterprises Limited (note) (Fff 5%) Interest of controlled corporation
R S 909,376,000 19.02%
Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(note) (Fff 5%) XEEE ER 909,376,000 19.02%
Note: s

These interests are held by Powerful Software Limited which is own as to 65% and 35% by Merry
Cycle Enterprises Limited and Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited respectively. Merry Cycle
Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Hua Yunbo while Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited
is wholly-owned by Ms. Shan Hua. Mr. Hua Yunbo and Ms. Shan Hua are therefore deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company held by Powerful Software Limited for the purpose of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person, other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out herein
this report, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

% % 1 % B Powerful Software Limited 3 A + 1 & 2
7 2 Bll ;1 Merry Cycle Enterprises Limited 5 Gorgeous
Moment Holdings Limited # % 65% [ 35% # # © Merry
Cycle Enterprises Limited B £ =K F £ 2 EHE -
ifl Gorgeous Moment Holdings Limited Al f % 4£ 27 +
2EER R RTESFRBEHAB N &
=M S R4 2T AR B R Powerful Software
Limited FT ¥ 2 AR BRI A A e

REXABREEIN R-F—LF=A
=t—B HEEAAL(EZFRARAF
EFRITRABKRIN  ERSDHNARE)
RARBBRDHAEBBRD P EEARE
&5 NG IR FE 6 R IAR ©
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions between the Group and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in relation to the compensation of key management
personnel as disclosed in Note 31(b) to the consolidated financial statements are
connected transactions exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to Rule [4A.95 of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all
Hong Kong staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, up to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500 (effective from June 2014)
per month. The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the percentage of the Group's turnover
attributable to its largest customer and five largest customers were 2.13% and
6.1 1% respectively.

For the year ended 3| March 2017, the percentage of the Group’s purchases
attributable to its largest supplier and five largest suppliers were 58.84% and
64.85%, respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2017 did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any

material interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the VIE Agreements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2017,

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director and officer shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may incur or sustain in the execution of his duties or

otherwise in relation thereto.

Such provision was in force during the year ended 31 March 2017. In addition,
the Company has also maintained Directors and officers liability insurance during
the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association,
or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the Company has

maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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CHANGE OF AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of the Group
with effect from 24 March 2017 as the Company could not reach a mutual

agreement with Deloitte on the audit fee for the financial year ended 31 March
2017.

With the recommendation of the Audit Committee, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited (“Shinewing") has been appointed as the new auditor of the Group with
effect from 24 March 2017 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
Deloitte and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2017 were audited by Shinewing. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Shinewing as
auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Life Healthcare Group Limited

Hua Yunbo
Chairman and President

27 June 2017
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OVERVIEW

The Company has formulated and maintained a high standard of corporate

governance practices in order to safeguard the interest of shareholders,

employees and other stakeholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2017, except for the following deviations:

Code provision E.I.2 of the CG Code provides interpretation that the
chairman of the board of directors should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their
absence, he should invite another member of the committee or failing this
his duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to
answer questions at the annual general meeting. Mr. Lau Yu, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee at that time did
not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 August
2016 (the “2016 AGM") as he had another business engagement. Other
members of the Board including the chairman of the Audit Committee
attended the 2016 AGM. The Company considers that the members of
the Board who attended the 2016 AGM were able to sufficiently answering
questions from shareholders at the 2016 AGM.

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code provides that the non-executive

directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
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The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors were
not appointed for specific terms. In accordance with the Provision 84 of
the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years. As such, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company's corporate governance practices are in line to those of the CG
Code.

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a
timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members, being two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors. The
list of Directors is set out in the section headed "Directors’ Report” and the
details of the Directors including their backgrounds and qualifications are set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Each of the Directors has no fixed term of service with the Company and has not
entered into service contract with the Company but is subject to retirement and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of the Company
and its members are collectively responsible for promoting the business of the
Company by formulating the Group's overall strategies and policies, approving the
business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group in pursuit of the Group’s
overall strategies and overseeing the management of the Group. The Board has
established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. The management of the Group is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group, and implementing the
business strategies and plans formulated and approved by the Board.
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All Directors have acted in good faith for the best interests of the Company
and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory duties imposed
on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring the
corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave concem, sufficient
time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation to the Company concerning his or her independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are considered to be independent.

The number of Board meetings and general meetings attended by each Director
during the year ended 3| March 2017 is set out below:
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Number of Number of

Board meetings  general meetings

Executive Directors attended attended
LEEEEEE HERRA®

HITEE RE RE
Mr. Hua Yunbo (Chaimman and President) EEFaE(FRREH) [4/15 0N
Ms. Shan Hua (Chief executive officer) BT+ (TRER) 15/15 0N
Number of Number of

Board meetings  general meetings

Non-executive Directors attended attended
LEEEREE HERRA®

FHTEE R RE
Dr. Feng Xiaogang BEAEL 13/15 12
Mr. Wang Liang (appointed as executive Directoron | January 2014, TR EE(R-Z—NE—-F-BEZ{ 06 o/l

re-designated to non-executive Director on 15 February 2016
and resigned on 22 August 2016)
NRZTZA&ME)
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Number of Number of

Board meetings  general meetings

Independent Non-executive Directors attended attended

HEESEEE HERRAS

BIFHTES RE e |

Mr. Liu Xinghua (appointed on |2 September 2016) X‘Hﬂé%i( “E-NENATZBEZA) 6l6 I/l

Mr. Zhou Jian (appointed on |2 September 2016) ARAEMR - FANATZREZ) 6/6 I/l

Mr. Zheng Chunlei REELE 10715 2

Ms. Zhang Xuyang (appointed on 22 August 2016) KEHAXT(R-Z-~ENA-T=H 89 I/l

EZ )

Mr. Yau Yan Ming Raymond (appointed on |5 August 201 | BEREE(R-_F-——FN\ATHA 306 I/l
and resigned on 22 August 2016) BZAIR T R"FNAZTZHEHE)

Mr. Lau Yu (appointed on |3 May 2014 and resigned AFAEM-_E-—NERATZH 19 o/l
on 12 September 2016) EZAIR-_F- EAAT-REL)

Save for regular Board meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2017, meetings of the Directors were held to discuss and transact other
special businesses. The Board members are provided with appropriate and
sufficient information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the Group's latest
developments. All businesses transacted at the Board meetings are properly
documented and recorded.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, the Board formulated their
terms of reference and performed the following corporate governance duties
during the year ended 3| March 2017

*  To review the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations;

*  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

*  To review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

*  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees; and

e To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report, Mr. Hua Yunbo is the chairman to the Board providing leadership
to the Board and Ms. Shan Hua acts as the chief executive officer of the
Company overseeing the general management and daily operation of the Group.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction
to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the business and
operations of the Group; (i) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (iii) the corporate governance
code of the Company and (iv) the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors
will be arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary. The
Directors are committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided
their training records for the year ended 31 March 2017 to the Company.
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Topics on training covered (Notes)

Name of Directors ExEns PR E 2 5 9 = & (M a)
Hua Yunbo =R (1. ). 3). (4)
Shan Hua Lok:2 (1. (2).G). 4
Feng Xiaogang 185 B (1) @). *)
Liu Xinghua PUPRE: (1) (4)
Zhou Jian [E i (1)
Zheng Chunlei HEE (2). (4)
Zhang Xuyang 5K B FH 2)
Notesizt: (1) laws, rules and regulations il - %357 & 3 81

(2) finance, accounting or taxation 1 % - &5t B %

(3) management& 18

(4) business related to the Company & 7 2 ) £ % 48

11



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBKE

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential
legal actions against its Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in August 201 1.
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company and to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and members of the senior management of the Company. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director. The Remuneration Committee comprises of two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director.

EEZRRB
ALRCHEAEZAEEEY 2 EME
BRFRIEHES 2 RIRTHE -

FMEES
ARAERZE-——FNAKRIHTME
Ee -FHZEQ@ZIBRERHAR
AIERESERARARRERENRER
BV BRIABRESERIER
TEFEERRTEERARASRER
EXNBZREFMNAS -HFMEEG YL
BELEC O BENB T RAAF
Ak o

FHNERESH—RBUFRTESFEL
TR-FMEZEEemMMBABUENTE
ERh-AWTEFEK -

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March THZEeRNRHE _ZE—-—+E=A
2017. Details of the attendance of the committee members are as follows: “t+-BLEESRMACH -ZES
MEZHEFHBENT
Committee Members Attendance @ZEEME i *
Mr. Zhou Jian (Chairman of the Committee) 0/0 AREE(ZERLE) 0/0
(appointed on |2 September 2016) (RZE—RENA
TZHEZAE)
Ms. Shan Hua 22 BALE 22
Ms. Zhang Xuyang (appointed on 22 August 2016) /1 KB L (RZT—RF I/
NAZ+ZBEZ)
Mr. Lau Yu (resigned on 12 September 2016) 12 BFEERZT-—RF 12
NA+ZBET)
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 22 August 2016) /1 FRBAEER_T-—REF I/
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The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 3| March 2017 included, amongst other things, the following:

. reviewing the remuneration policy for Directors and senior management

and making recommendation to the Board;

. making recommendations on the remuneration packages of the non-
executive directors; and

. reviewing and determining the remuneration of the executive Directors

and members of the senior management.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. The
Company also adopted a share option scheme on 18 September 2012 for the
primary propose of providing incentives to any Directors and employees of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters, service
providers to the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have

contributed or shall contribute to the Group.

The remuneration of the Directors, being the senior management of the
Company, by band for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of persons
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FHEEERNEBEE_T-LF=H
St -HALFERTZEETHRASE
BUTERE:

. RIEFREATEEFMRRL
AEFE RIS

c BRFRTESFHASEHERS:
I

+ BERETRTEEREREEE
KB ZHH -

ESZHEMBR

EZFM O ayMEEeRENET
ROARMHBEBET - ARBAR-F
—ZFEANATN\BERMBRESE
ZENERNRBEFE2ENERR/E
KIBeUrEEELER AR EIT
MEEREE ARAKETMAER:
AN DA ARRE - HEE - R
P RBEBH ALEEBBH BEA
RREGHER -

EX(AALARREEEB)BE-Z
—tFZA=T-HULFEREEES

ZHHME ST

FMEE AB

Not more than HK$ 1,000,000 8
HK$ 1,000,001 -HK$2,000,000 Nil
HK$2,000,00 1 -HK$3,000,000 2

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees
as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set
out in notes 13 and 3| to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, respectively.

R #848 1,000,00078 T 8
1,000,001 ¥ 7T, —2,000,000 & T =
2,000,001 7 7T —3,000,000 7 7T 2

AREEMRBIME RBELEZHM

RAEZBESHALTHED BIERAER
RAUBBRERME IR -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in March 2012.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed change and to review the board diversity policy of the Company
and review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
such policy and the progress on achieving the objectives and appointment of
directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee have been posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the

Company, respectively.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive

Director. The Nomination Committee comprises of one executive Director and

REZEE
ARAERZB-ZF= ANTREE
BE RAZHSZIERAATHS

ME=gcRE RAERAEK(BERAR
- HMBRER) IENEZEYRNE
ZFERUER BMAXRAZEZTENK
EZLER URAEZTERETH

EREHEZHBEERERAEL
ERURZAEERSAEEE - 124
EERZBREBED AN BHAB LR
SEONGESTTR

REAZEEH—RBUFRTESFEL
TR -REAZEEM - ZUTEERW

two independent non-executive Directors. BB IERITESAER -
The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March BEZTEeRlNHgE _ZE—-—+E=A
2017. Detalils of the attendance of the committee members are as follows: =t+—HIEEL fﬁngu\ el =
KEZHEFBENT

Committee Members Attendance @ZESHE HE =
Mr. Liu Xinghua (Chairman of the Committee) 00 X3¢ ﬁé 5% H(ZEE2FFE) 0/0

(appointed on |2 September 2016) (RZE—-RENA

t+= E! BZE)

Mr. Hua Yunbo 12 H=RREHE 112
Mr. Zheng Chunlei 22 REBERE 22
Mr. Lau Yu (resigned on |2 September 2016) 12 BFEERZZE—RF 112

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 3| March 2017 included, amongst other things, the following:

. reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

. reviewing the board diversity policy;
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. considering and making recommendations to the Board for the

appointment of Directors and management;

. considering the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company held in August 2016; and

. reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 30 August 2013 which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the
Board with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in August 201 1. The
principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the relationship
with the auditors of the Company; review the financial information of the Group
and oversee the Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures
and risk management system. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
has been amended and re-adopted by the Board on | April 2016 to include the
risk management function, and the same has been published on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors
and one of whom has the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2017. BHR ZEBEe@NBEZ_T—+F=A
Details of the attendance of the committee members are as follows: =t—HIEFEES %-,1{75 /ﬂ@ HoLE®
KEZHREFHEBWT
Committee Members Attendance @ EEEHE i E %
Ms. Zhang Xuyang (Chairman of the Committee) 22 KR (ZE2FE) 212
(appointed on 22 August 2016) (R=ZZE—~"ENA=+=H

R )

Mr. Zheng Chunlei 35 HEBERE 3/5

Mr. Zhou Jian (appointed on |2 September 2016) 22 RAREERZZ—RENA 22
+’Eﬁ§@)

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (resigned on 22 August 2016) 33 EHRBELEE(RZT—RFENA 3/3
Z+ZHEE)

Mr. Lau Yu (resigned on |2 September 2016) 13 BIFEERZZ—X"FENA 1/3
TZHEE)

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 3| EREEERBE_T-—LtF=H

March 2017 included, amongst other things, the following;

*  reviewing the annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2016 with the conclusion that the preparations of such results have

been complied with the applicable accounting standards;

. reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 201 6;

*  reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems and
procedures and risk management system; and

. reviewing and recommending the appointment of new auditor to the Board
for approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary™) supports
the Board. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary.

The Company Secretary is Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (“Mr. Chung"). Mr. Chung was
appointed on 17 March 2017 and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company.
Mr. Chung has complied with the relevant professional training requirement of
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the
external auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the external
auditor. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the fee for audit and non-audit
services to the Company's external auditors, for the provision of services are as
follows:
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ENZBERAERIERAM IS
MWI\H%?%ZEWM AT FZ B R T -
REE-T—tF-A=1t-HLFE"
AN ﬂ7I\E%TZ%(Eﬂﬁmﬁiﬁ%ﬂl&#&%{
R#ERMT :

Deloitte Shinewing

=& fEKFH

HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAET

Audit services ZEIRH - 1,392

Non-audit services FZE R

(including review of interim report (REERTHES

and financial information) KA BER) 527 -

527 1,392

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group. The responsibilities of the Directors and

auditor of the Company are set out on pages 59 to 67 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of internal control
and risk management are maintained within the Group, and to review their
effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal control and risk
management systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and
the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not
to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’ s objectives. Practicable and
effective internal control systems and procedures and risk management systems
have been implemented by the Group to enhance internal control and risk

management on an ongoing basis.
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MAIN FEATURES OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND EREERAPERRAK((ZEZ
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS (“SYSTEMS”) HNzETEEE
Control structure EEEE
The Board +  ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective A . HMREBAERBEW™
Systems in order to safeguard the shareholders’ R EZE RER
investment and assets of the Group; RRENAEEEE
*  define management structure with clear lines of . HITEHHMELLRE
responsibility and limit of authority; and BHEERE &
¢ determine the nature and extent of significant risk o EBFEALNTETEH
that the Company is willing to take in achieving the BEEmPEREZE
strategic objectives and formulate the Group's risk KER 78 REE
management strategies. I HE A EE 2 E R
TR -
Audit Committee ¢ oversee the Systems of the Group; EZEBEEE® « ERKEEIZEZX
il
*  review and discuss with the management annually . FHEEBERS
to ensure that the management has performed its T UBRER
duty to have effective Systems; and BIEBSI&EZ
ERGzANML R
*  consider major findings on internal control matters . EEEBANITEITZH
and make recommendations to the Board. EMEEFAETERT
MEFSRLEE-
The management ¢ design, implement and monitor the Systems TER s UELH EWMME
properly and ensure the Systems are executed By TER
effectively; DEZBBUERH
175
*  monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in o EEEE e R ELIS 56
day-to-day operations; BRIERA TS ERRE
*  give prompt responses to, and follow up the . HABENYEEZEEHE
findings on internal control matters; and JHAERREHLE
e e R BR ]
¢ provide confirmation to the Board on the e MRMEEeBRALEZX
effectiveness of the Systems. R BRE
Internal Audit Function ¢ carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of N 2028 7% o HHERGIREREE
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems. B Bt LEBREEATDITR

BAUMNZ
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Control approach
The risk management process includes risk identification, risk evaluation and risk
management measures.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control system, identifying and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design of the Group'’s internal control
system, providing recommendations for improvement and following up on the
effectiveness of implementation of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk management and internal control
are reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use and/or extemal
publication.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has carried out an internal
audit review on the money lending business. The findings are summarised into a
procedure manual and submitted to the Audit Committee for review. The Board
intends to outsource the internal audit function to a professional firm in the next
financial year.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
has reviewed effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control and risk
management in respect of financial, operational and compliance aspect annually
and considers that the systems are adequate and effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions, and consider that they
are adequate.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR

THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of SFO and the Listing Rules in relation
to the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable. Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been
breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in building
successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company always endeavour
to provide relevant information to existing and potential investors, not only to
comply with the different requirements in force but also to enhance transparency
and communications with shareholders and the investing public. Regular and
publicly available disclosures about important issues, including performance,
fundamental business strategy, governance and the management of risk are made
through various channels:

*  the Company's annual general meeting

. interim and annual results announcements published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

. interim and annual reports of the Company delivered to all shareholders;

¢ timely update of the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;
. meeting with shareholders;
. regular circulars and letters to shareholders; and

. prompt news releases and announcements regarding major corporate
actions and business initiatives.

The Company maintains a website at www.lifehealthcare.com where the
Company’s announcements, circulars, notices, financial reports, business
developments, press releases and other information are posted.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is in full compliance with
disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors of the Company
have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain exterally available information
that is released by the Group.
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The Company always welcome shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders and
other stakeholders may at any time address their concems to the Company by
mail to the Company's principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, [0/F, Bank of East
Asia Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, or
email to ir@lifehealthcare.com.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company's principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 10/F, Bank of
East Asia Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any
specified transaction/business and its supporting documents.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the year
ended 3| March 2017.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
of Life Healthcare Group Limited (formerly known as Tack Fiori International
Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or
“We"). The ESG Report summarizes the efforts and achievement made by the
Group in corporate social responsibility and sustainable development. As for the
information of corporate governance, please refer to the "Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 37 to 51 of this annual report.

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social performance of the
business in providing services of the Group in People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The ESG Report presents our sustainability approach and performance
in the environmental and social aspects of our business in the reporting period
from | April 2016 to 31 March 2017 (the “Year”). The Group will continue
to strengthen information collection in order to enhance the performance
in environmental realm and to disclose relevant information in sustainable

development.

Reporting Framework
The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Stakeholder Engagement

We have engaged our employees from different divisions of the Group to help
us recognise our sustainability performance. The diligently collected and carefully
analyzed information was not only the Group's sustainable initiatives during
the Year, but also the basis for the Group to set up short-term and long-term
sustainability strategy. The Group will increase the involvement of stakeholders
via constructive conversation with a view to charting a course for long-term

prosperity.
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Information and Feedbacks

For detailed information about the environmental and corporate governance,
please refer to the official website (http://www.lifehealthcare.com) and the annual
report of the Company. Your opinions will be highly valued by the Company. If
you have any advice or suggestions, please email to ir@lifehealthcare.com.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

Emissions

The Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact from its
business activities and has strictly complied with the relevant laws and regulations,
such as the Regulations on the Administration of Medical Wastes ({5 & & ¥ &
12 {5 01)) and Measures for Medical Wastes Management of Medical and Health
Institutions (B B F £ M EBEENEEIE))

The waste generated from our business is mainly medical waste and general
waste which are collected separately to prevent contamination. Hazardous
medical waste, such as blood sample, is disinfected before being put in the anti-
penetrating containers, and then delivered to the entity of concentrated disposal
of medical wastes for prompt treatment. Apart from the hazardous medical
waste, general waste and non-hazardous medical waste are collected and
processed by the local environmental hygiene department for further handling.

We use finished reagents which do not involve acid, alkali or other chemical
reagents as the raw material, and the testing process does not involve
volatilization or evaporation of the raw materials. Therefore, generally there is no

exhaust gas emission in our operation.

Our major type of wastewater is domestic sewage which is fittered in septic tanks
and then discharged to the municipal drainage system.
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Resources Conservation
The Group also pays attention to the practice of resources conservation, so as to
lessen the environmental impact of our daily operations.

As part of the environmental initiatives, office areas are divided into multiple
lighting zones with independent switches and the temperature of air-conditioning
system is maintained at a minimum of 25.5 degrees Celsius. Employees are also
required to switch off the lighting, air-conditioning and other electronic appliances
when not in use to reduce the electricity consumption. We also install energy-
saving lighting fixtures, such as T5 fluorescent lamps and LED lighting to increase

the energy efficiency.

To conserve water, we reduce the water pressure to the lowest practical level
and use dual-flush toilets. Employees are reminded to tum off the faucet tightly to
avoid water waste. Also, we carry out regular checking on concealed piping and
fix dripping taps immediately to prevent the water leakage.

In furtherance of our environmental commitment, paperless office is advocated
to lower the paper consumption and reduce the carbon emissions. We always
encourage employees to use papers on both sides and double-sided photocopying
where possible. Non-reusable paper without confidential information is collected
and sent to recycling companies for further handling. Moreover, we promote the
use of electronic systems, such as office administration systems (OA System),
appointment booking application for healthcare services and the communication
via electronic means to reduce the paper use.
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

Employment Policies and Welfare

In our ongoing pursuit of the aim of “Taking People as the Foremost”, the Group
strictly abides by the requirements stipulated in the relevant employment laws
and regulations regarding compensation, benefits and dismissal, such as the
Labour Law of the PRC ({F* £ A B # MBI 25 %)) and Labour Contract
Law of the PRC (R E AR XEMBE B E) 5 F%)).

As an equal opportunity employer, all applicants with relevant professional
qualifications and working experience receive equal consideration for
employment, regardless of nationality, gender, age, race, religion or disability.
After the applicants accept our offers, identification check is performed to ensure
no child labour is employed. To prevent forced labour, the employment period,
working hours, leave and job position are clearly stated in the employment
contract. The working hours of the Group should not exceed 8 hours per day,
and 40 hours per week. Apart from statutory holidays set out in the relevant
national and regional regulations, employees are entitled to different types of
leaves, including annual leave, wedding leave, funeral leave, maternity leave,
patemity leave and so on.

The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees and
conducts annual remuneration review based on prevailing market standards
and their working performance. Employees with outstanding performance in
the appraisal will also be given promotion opportunity. In compliance with the
Social Insurance Law of the PRC ({1 ZE A R &£ 1 Bl 4 & (R I 75 )), we
pay “Five Social Insurances and One Housing Fund" for employees, including
basic endowment insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, matemnity insurance and Housing Provident Fund.
Upon receipt of a resignation notice, exit interview is arranged to understand
the reason of quitting and payment of the outstanding wages is made in a timely

manner as required by the relevant laws.
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To promote the concept of work-life balance to employees, we organise irregular
outward bound and monthly birthday parties to foster positive workplace
relationship as well as the sense of belonging toward the Group.

Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of the health and safety
of our employees and closely complies with the laws and regulations in relation
to labour protection, such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ({7 2= A K £ M Bl B % 7%
B8 7%)).

To ensure the safety of employees, they are required to undergo regular physical
examination and attend occupational health and safety trainings to better
understand the health and safety practice of the Group. In view of the potential
exposure to hazards in workplace, employees, especially laboratory technicians,
are provided with necessary personal protection equipment, including safety
gloves, masks and protection suits. Protection suits and other equipment, such
as biosafety cabinet, are regularly cleaned and disinfected to maintain employee
cleanliness and workplace hygiene. Also, eating, drinking or smoking is not allowed
in the laboratory. In order to safeguard the health of employees, a procedure for
accident handling is developed in case of an emergency.

Training and Development

To facilitate new employees’ adaptation to the job, orientation training is provided
to the new employees and a mentor is assigned to help them get familiar with
the Group’s practice. Moreover, various trainings designed in accordance with the
needs of different departments are offered to enrich our employees’ knowledge
and professional skills. For laboratory technicians, two types of specialty trainings
are provided, namely theoretical training and practical training, Theoretical training
introduces the working procedures of genetic testing in laboratory while practical
training focuses on the demonstration of genetic testing. Employees are required
to attend an examination after the completion of each type of specialty trainings,
to ensure they understand the knowledge and professional skills taught in the
trainings.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

To minimise the impact of supply chain to our services, the Group selects
suppliers based on stringent criteria, such as the product quality, reputation and
delivery time. Upon the arrival of the delivery, we undergo examination to make
sure the purchased equipment meets our requirement. After the examination
of the newly arrived equipment, we produce equipment files which include
the labels of equipment, information of suppliers and specification provided by
suppliers. If the equipment fails to meet our requirement, replacement or return
will be arranged to guarantee our service quality.

Quality Assurance

With healthcare services being the core part of our business, the Group complies
with the relevant laws and regulations such as the Measures for Medical
Organization Administration ( 2 & 1 #5 & 12 1& il )) issued by the State
Council of the PRC and Detailed Rules for Medical Organization Administration
Regulations ({8 /& #1% B I2 1R I B s 4 BIl)) issued by the National Health
and Family Planning Commission of the PRC.

To protect the samples from contamination in the laboratory, we have devised
procedures for operations in the laboratory. We also require the laboratory
technicians to wear different colours of protection suits and to regularly clean and
disinfect the laboratory equipment, in order to maintain workplace hygiene and
prevent the cross-contamination of the samples.

Apart from the hygiene control in laboratory, the Group also understands the
importance of an accurate testing result. Thus, we have developed policies in
relation to the management and maintenance of laboratory equipment, especially
the calibration of laboratory equipment. Our equipment is calibrated externally
by state qualified unit and internally when necessary to ensure its accuracy.
Qualified personnel is assigned to each equipment for the daily management and
maintenance, to make sure equipment that we are using is in good condition.
Damaged equipments will not be used until they are fixed by the suppliers.
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Clients’ Information Protection

For privacy protection, informed consent is obtained from clients to assure that
all information is held in strict confidentiality. Clients are also informed that the
testing result may be used for future research without disclosure of their personal
information and they have the rights to withdraw from the genetic testing.

Respect for Intellectual Property Rights

To respect the intellectual property rights, the Group is in strict compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations, such as the Copyright Law of the PRC ({ #
E=ARLMEZERE)) and Regulations for the Protection of Computer
Software ({ 5T & # X 1+ (& & & {51 )). Our software developed for genetic

testing has obtained the Certificate of the Registration of Computer Software (&t
ERGHEERELES))

Anti-corruption

The Group endeavors to uphold the integrity in its business operation and
complies with the laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption, such as the
Criminal Law of the PRC ({# Z£ A & £ MBI Jf )% )). We have adopted the
whistle-blowing policy, which provides a reporting channel for employees to
disclose any suspected bribery, corruption or other unlawful acts at a meeting or
in a written report. Upon receipt of a report, we will handle the case by carrying
out inspection and taking preventive measures.

CONTRIBUTING THE COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to community services in its business operation. As
a provider of healthcare services, we strive to promote the application of the
genetic testing in clinical medicine and related healthcare services, and to further
raise the awareness of public health. We also invite voluntary patients to join our
research projects. Patient's participation not only contributes to the advancement
of medicine, but also allows the patient to better understand his or her condition.
We will continue our effort in promoting and applying our profession in genetic
testing in clinical medicine and related healthcare services.

58

REEFEHR
RRELE - BRALEPREAER
%%%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ“%ﬁ%°%ﬁﬁﬂ
%ﬂﬁ%%&K&@ﬁAﬁﬂ%%ﬁ?

FREMARE REMARER
ﬁﬁlﬁﬂ

EEANRER
AEEEENHER BEETHEL
BB flandrh 2 AR HNE 2 (E 1
EIRCGT BRI RE DD - HAIBE
A Eng i MEGIEREHE
FRBLES)

K&
AEERNBEUNAGEKERSE L&
BEBREARERRO - HlIdFEA
REAMBAE) - LI FRABERBCR
REEHRE BEEECHLEAR
ETREBELASREE B E M
ETR-BMARERER REYEH
EHETHERRRARER

BER4E
REBERBEED RN LR RS -
APEREERBEER HOEER
PRk B2 N ARRE R R IR R R AR
Iﬁ FRAAREEEH - RAATE
FRABRMAREEE -HmANSH
$Eﬁ@@%ﬁi TSRmAENT#
HOBRAN - AFAREEREAEER
HERRERBS  KOEERERERLMA
EER A F X6 -



SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fekPie

Shineﬂ)ing

TO THE MEMBERS OF

LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Life Healthcare
Group Limited (formerly known as Tack Fiori International Group Limited)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 68 to 153, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“‘the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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VALUATION OF INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on pages 90 to 91.

The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

REFHNEELE

The Group has a 30% equity interest in an associate &
Mg Im £ W E B A R 2 &l with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$57,370,000 as at 31 March
2017,

Share of result of an associate amounted to a loss of
approximately HK$5,69 1,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017 (since the date of acquisition) and is considered as an
indicator for impairment by management.

In light of the above impairment indicator, management
determined the recoverable amount of the interest in an
associate with reference to profit forecasts and cash flows
projections on the relevant cash generating unit.

We have identified the valuation of interest in an
associate as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and because
determination of the recoverable amount of the relevant
cash generating unit required significant management
judgment and was based on assumptions made for the
profit and cash flow forecast.

EEBEE R E QA BI0%MKE - E N2
EMEEREMERATIR _E—+tF=A
=+ —H®ERMEEL A57,370000% T °

I

HE T +tHF=A=+—BILFE(BWEH
HAAE) D — KBt 2 QN A 48 A E 18 495,691,000
BT WEEBTBRBHRMEERE -

ERNELRERE EREEK2EHBRITE
ABEUZEMBERARReRERAIREERE
N—KBE QR 2 A YO &5 e

BFBER—RBE2/RIZBEHERERSE
AEE RAREECHBEREELBEM 2 AR
CeHEEFREEREEAG YA EERE
MR 2 BRSELE -

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s assessment and challenge the reasonableness
of the methods and assumptions used to estimate the
recoverable amount of the associate.

We have obtained and reviewed the profit forecasts and
cash flows projections to estimate the recoverable amount
of the associate.

We have also reviewed and assessed the reasonableness
of assumptions and basis used by the management in the
profit forecast and cash flows projection and reviewed the
relevant supporting documents during the assessment.

We have reviewed sensitivity analysis performed by
the management about the key assumptions underlying
the discounted cash flow forecasts in order to assess
the potential impact of a range of possible outcomes
and considered whether there was any evidence of
management bias in the selection of assumptions.
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RECOVERABILITY OF LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Refer to notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 97.

The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

REFHNEELE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had loan receivables and
associated interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$86,000,000 and HK$4,072,000 respectively, which
accounts for 24.01% in aggregate of the Group's net asset.
Any allowance for impairment loss on loan receivables
will have an adverse impact to consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

We consider the impairment assessment of loan
receivables and associated interest receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of amounts and the
subjective nature of the provision for impairment as the
amount of impairment required significant management
judgment and may be subject to management bias.
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Our procedures were designed to review the management's
assessment and challenge the reasonableness of the
methods and assumptions used to estimate the provision for
impairment.

We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment
with the management such as ageing and past due analysis
and, where such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing.

We have challenged the assumptions used by the
management by assessing the economic factors and cash
received after year end.
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CONTROL OF E M (t 1) B E B B IR A & (LIFE HEALTHCARE

(BEIJING) CO., LTD#) (“LIFE HEALTHCARE”)

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting

policies on pages 88 to 89.

The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

REFHNEELE

The Group considers itself to have attained control over
Life Healthcare through a series of structured agreements
and accounted for it as a subsidiary of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2017 despite the lack of equity
interest in Life Healthcare.

We consider the control of Life Healthcare as a key audit
matter due to significant management judgment involved
over its controlling stake in Life Healthcare which may be
subject to management bias.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on

those statements on 22 June 2016.

OTHER INFORMATION

We have inspected the relevant structured agreements
and other relevant documents and considered the
management's PRC legal advice to determine whether the
structured contract arrangements gave rise to control of
Life Healthcare under HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other

than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

*  For identification purpose only 2 {2 3 5
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of
the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing and providing supervision over

the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate

with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

66

7

T/‘\A"""

« HMEEEFRAEHBREEARE
ARAEH Gt et REBERERD
"R

7

- HESRAREBELLQHERRS
IREEL&Ew o REBEMERMNER
BE BRTEOFEEZFRAEBRN
BRMEATHETEME EmAES
Y ERENFELERNEL
EXRE-HAMAZ/AFEEAT
BEN AELEEZAMBRS S
RECREIBGAMBHRRTH
HERBE-REEBERETR A
HFEERRFEREER - 1
W& e R ZHE RS B LT
FEVRETRE - AN RAFEK
ERAIREEE BRETHERELE -

« HERAMBHRRNERIIHS A -
BBANAR BREEE URES
BERERERAFR2INABRHR
FH-

- B ERBEARRBIXBEIHNG
BERERRER  BENENTRE
NEHGEEMBRRERER - #
MaE EKERANSIM EE
R#IT RARBFELAERH
BfE-

REMEEN RMEEZZESER
THEMNEHEE KERYE EAR
AERS BRAMAERHEZAEA
BRH 2 T ERERE

IMEMNBEZZEGRRER  HAR
MENaREBLIENRBEEREEREX
VTEREZREVEAEMRAREY
ERMBELENMABRREMSZE
UREBRMIERT - ABERHEER



From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Mr. Kwan Chi Fung.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwan Chi Fung

Practising Certificate Number: PO66 14

Hong Kong
27 June 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE -2 —+tF=A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P & TER FHET
Turnover EER 7 5114
Cost of sales and services HE KRR A (1283)
Gross profit EH 3,831
Other income and gain H b A R Wz 8 I1,394
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HEKA (1,229)
Share of result of an associate PME—RBME AR ZER 17 —
Administrative and other expenses THREMES (40,687)
Impairment of goodwil HERE 18 (3842)
Reversal of (allowance for) inventories FERD(BE) 9 (3,808)
Operating loss REBR (34,341)
Finance costs BBER 10 =
Loss before taxation Bt A& 1B I (34,341)
Income tax FTiGHt 12 4
Loss for the year AFEEER (34.337)
Other comprehensive expenses that may be ~ HEER[BEEM DB EBHEZ
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: H2HEAY
Exchange differences on translation MEMRELEN =5 (1817)
Share of foreign currency translation DME—RBE AR Z
reserve of an associate INEE B E -
Reclassification of translation reserve to — R B 1 AR A A
profit or loss upon deregistration of BEREFEBEENIEZER
a subsidiary (1,492)
(3309)
Total comprehensive expenses AEEZERLER
for the year (37,646)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—B-t§ —TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt &F TR TET
Loss for the year attributable to: ATATREREEES
Owners of the Company ARAIEE A (34.337)
Non-controlling interest JE TR 2R -
(34337)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year UWTATEERFEERERX
attributable to: -
Owners of the Company ARAIEE A (37,646)
Non-controlling interest R ER -
(37,646)
(restated)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER 15 (E5))
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — ERREE (B (1.32)
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Asat31March 2017 R=E—tF=F=1+—H

2017
—EB-tf
Notes HK$’000
P & TER
Non-current assets (RBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER e l6
Interest in an associate R—FEBERA 2 Bm 17
Goodwill RS 18
Trademark e 19
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of YRR EEZENRE
intangible asset 20
Inventories FE 21
Loan receivables &t & 3% 22
Trade and other receivables FEN B 5 & E o FE U 3R 23
Bank balances and cash BITERRR S 24
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables ERNE 5 Kk H & 5E 25
Loan from a director RE—REEZEX 26

Tax payable

N HIR

Net current assets

RBEERE

Net assets

EERE

70

2016
—E-REF
HK$'000
FET

12,485
2,158

4481
65810

84,934

1,331
20,000

21,331
63,603
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wRa B SRR &

Asat31March 2017 R—ZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—B-t§ T F
Notes HK$'000  HK$000
Pt &F THERT TET
Capital and reserves RAER GG

Share capital % 7K 27 21,444
Reserves fEfE 43371

Total equity attributable to: ATALTEEEREE:
Owners of the Company N/NETEZ 2N 64,815
Non-Controlling Interest FERER -
Total equity ERAH 64,815

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 153 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 June 2017 and are signed on
its behalf by:

FREIBAZKEAMBRICEES
ER-_Z—tFRAZTLHBERR
BH% Th FIATRERE

Hua Yunbo
=R
Executive Director

HITEE

Shan Hua
A

Executive Director

HITEF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE -2 —+tF=A=+—HItFE

Non-
Share Share  Contrbuted  Translation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve [osses Sub-total interest Total
Bx BOEE  BARR  HERE  HeRE  2HERE @ FERER &3t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AL TAL Tian THERL TR TR TR TR TR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hf3Ea) (PzEb)
At | April 2015 RZZ2-1EMA-A 21444 849,351 167,780 526 5518 (942,158) 102461 - 102461
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - (3433)) (34337) - (34337)
Other comprehensive expenses BEVERZRMES
anising from exchange AR ERRX
differences on translations - - - (1817) - - (1817) - (1817)
Reclassication of translation reserve ~— — KK B A A B3
to proftt or loss upon HRERagEEE
deregistration of  subsidiary EXipsEY -t - - - (1492) = - (1492) - (1492)
Total comprehensive expenses TEERERTBE
for the year - - - (3309) - (34337) (37:46) - (37,646)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=R=1+-H 21444 849,351 167,780 (2783) 5518 (976495) 64815 - 64815
Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Translation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve osses Total interest Total
Bx  BRHEE SARER BERE HbEE 2HER ac  FERER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TiEn TER TEn TiEn TEn TAn Thn TER
(Note a) (Note b)
(HtzEa) (KtzEb)
At 1 Aprl 2016 RZF-~FMA-A
Loss for the year REEER
Other comprehensive expense FEREMZARY
for the year
Exchange differences on translation REENERMELE
of foreign operation REE
Share of foreign currency translation ~~ PME—FKBE R F 2
reserve of an associate NERERR
Total comprehensive expense TEERERTAE
for the year
Capital contribution by non-controling ~ — R K B A A1 32k
interest of a subsidiary B TR

Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary (note 17)
Issue of shares for acquisition of

WE—Z KB AEN
B (W3t 17)
ARE-RBELNT

an associate (note 27(a)) BT (3 27)
Issue of shares under rights issue BEEREIRG

(note 27(0)) (RzE27()
Transaction costs attributable to BIIROZRGRA

issue of shares

At 31 March 2017

RZF—tF=A=1-H
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GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

The contributed surplus represents the difference between nominal value of the shares of
subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the Company

issued for the acquisition pursuant to the reorganisation in April 2002,

The other reserve represents the transfer from share options reserve upon exercise of share

options.
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AEeREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE -2 —+tF=A=+—HItFE

2017

—E-tF

Notes HK$’000
g 7 THERT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Exchange loss, net
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Share of result of an associate
Bank interest income
PRC loan interest income
Net loss on disposal of property,

KA E

BB AT E 1B

S TRFIIEE fE A
BEER
EREEFSR

W% BE R
RETE
DE—RBERE ¥ E 17
RATH B WA
BB A B A
HEWE  BERHRE

plant and equipment LEEFE
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — XM B2 m B
Z W s
Other income Hip e A
Impairment of goodwill BERE
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories FE (D) EE
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESE BRI
working capital REFENE
Increase in inventories FEEM
Increase in loan receivables & W & S
(Increase) decrease in trade and EWE 5 kA M 3KIE
other receivables (42 ) A &
Increase (decrease) in trade and BNESREMKIE
other payables BmOaL)
Cash used in operations LEMARS
Interest paid on other loans B E M A A
Income tax (paid) refunded (BERRBMAER
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBHRARSFE

ACTIVITIES
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E-t§ ZT-—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By TER FTAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE WENKE (322)
Acquisition of an associate WE—ZxBE QA 17 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFABRLZ
through profit or loss MBEE (154.934)
Redemption of financial assets at fair value BORATEGABRRZ
through profit or loss HHBEE 155,760
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BELRELZ
plant and equipment 3 E -
Bank interest received EUERTTH B 67
PRC loan interest received Bl BEERFE -
Prepayments refunded (paid) for acquisition WEELEEZRE(ER)
of intangible assets B RE (12:485)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZHMAREEE
ACTIVITIES (1,914)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Issue of share under rights issue BREBEERZETRD 27(b) -
Drawn down of loans RRER -
Loans from shareholders REREBZER -
Capital contribution by non-controlling GENGIE S
interest of subsidiaries ZEE -
Loan from a director RE—RESEZEN 50,000
Transaction cost attributable to issue of shares  ZE1TIRH 2 X 5 B A 27(b) =
Repayment of loan to a director M—EEEEBEREERN (30,000)
Repayment to shareholders EEES S -
Repayment of loans BEEX B
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEEFIEREFHE 20,000
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RERBEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #BmCHD>) 8 (29,779)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REFAZEER
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ReEEY 97,670
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXRZE L HE (2081)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REKRZEER
THE END OF THE YEAR, ReZEEY
represented by bank balances and cash RERITEHRAE 65810
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76

GENERAL

Life Healthcare Group Limited (formerly known as Tack Fiori International
Group Limited, the “Company) is a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands on 12 March 2001 and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 29 April 2002. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111, the Cayman
Islands and the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
Unit 3, 10/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in (i) healthcare
services in the People’'s Republic of China (“PRC"); (ii) money lending
business; (iii) education software products and related service business
in PRG; (iv) apparel retail business in PRC; and (v) securities trading and
investments business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 2 May 2017, the English name of the Company was changed from
“Tack Fiori International Group Limited” to “Life Healthcare Group Limited”
and the Chinese name of the Company was changed from “ %5 55 B i &2
BERLAR 0" ENBREREERRAF"

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The functional currency of
the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in PRC is Renminbi (“RMB"). For the
convenience of the consolidated financial statements users, the results and
financial position of the Group are presented in HK$ as the Company’s
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)""), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)"”), issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS |6
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS |6
and HKAS 4|

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS | | Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations

The directors of the Company consider that the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

EREEMBRE
pHHEEA#®)
C B E R ERZHETREEBE
BRMBHREREA

AEBRAEALTEEMERAK
AR RBERIBERHBRE

ZATER

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HK(FRIC)-Int 22
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Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Leases*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle?

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

Transfers of Investment Property?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?®

Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017 or | January 2018, as
appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

s Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described below,
the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010
and includes the requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further
amended to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that
will allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities in the
financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to
incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous
years with limited amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for impairment
assessments.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity's expected
credit losses on its financial assets and commitments to extend
credit were added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014), it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

0 HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities undertaken
by companies when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks
at whether a risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-financial
items. The new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes as a basis for
hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility
and compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics
that are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new model
also includes eligibility criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should reduce the
costs of implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis that is required

to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2018 with early application permitted.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future may have an impact on the Group's results and financial
position, including the classification categories and the measurement of
financial assets, and disclosures. For instance, the Group will be required to
replace the incurred loss impairment model in HKAS 39 with an expected
loss impairment model that will apply to various exposures to credit risk.
HKFRS 9 will also change the way the Group classifies and measures its
financial assets, and will require the Group to consider the business model
and contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets to determine
classification and subsequent measurement. For financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, the change in fair value that is attributable
to changes in credit risk could be presented in other comprehensive income.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 9 (2014) until a detailed review has been completed.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS |5 introduces
a model that applies to contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based
five-step analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and

when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;

(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

(iify  Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance

obligation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of the financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related

Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
I5 in the future may result in the identification of separate performance
obligations which could affect the timing of the recognition of revenue.
Certain costs incurred in fulfilling a contract which are currently expensed
may need to be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 5. More disclosures
relating to revenue are also required. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS [5 until a detailed

review is completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements of both lessors
and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with the lease term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset has a low value.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, plus any lease payments made to the
lessor at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, the initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs

incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at the present

value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently
measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment
made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset
will be charged to profit or loss following the requirements of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will be

charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS |6 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS |7 Leases. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to

account for those two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including HKAS 17 and

the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January
2019 with early application permitted provided that the entity has applied
HKFRS I5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$51,143,000. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these lease commitments
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 6. In addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in the measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
until the Group performs a detailed review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the investee;
(ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the Group’s returns. When the Group has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, power over the investee may be obtained
through: (i) a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (ii) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (iii) the Group'’s voting rights
and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on all
relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of these
elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control of the
subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Al intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiary

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in existing subsidiary that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the
non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interest in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

The Group's interests in associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. Under the equity method,
interests in associates are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of
the profit or loss and changes in the other comprehensive income of the
associates are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, which determined
using the equity method together with any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An interest in associate is accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate.

After application of the equity method, including recognising the associate’s
losses (if any), the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
any additional impairment loss with respect to its interest in an associate.
The entire carrying amount of the interest is tested for impairment as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the interests in
associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the interests subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The Group's share in
the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

* the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

*  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

*  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

*  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.

TESHEER®

o ()

BEINGAUBEREK KEEEIH
YR EERBENEREREH
KA EBERRERRER Y 27
EREE L) MAKTER K
ENTHEXRBE REEZER
ZE(ME)HRA MR EKEER -
VRAERPEALEB TR

R AE R B A

7B 3 AR KR A Rt 8 % o i 1
AEERHEZAR REECRHE
BERAEBFAETEERRFEN ©

EHEERET

BEDREBRGRESH 2 TE
EFE FRERBRARBZA
R M BE BN 2 @A 2 KRB
TRUBNER 2 BAETHER -

REHERRNER CABNER

AR BR A T TR AT A ST 2 R A
ZABREETE-

93



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit (loss) before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liabilities for current tax

is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress as described below are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

TESTRE®E

WA (E)
EEHREEEZREENRSHR
B XRTEAESRAERE
AR R E e BR D EE LR
ST T AR ©

ERRBEERAARBNRE M
AEHEXREELEHEZHE(R
k) RRBERNEERERE
BEAEHR KRR

EERBEEEREEZHERER
WEPRAEEFE R UM SHEFHE
BEREBEREBA2HFAMmMSI B2
HEBRR-

E\ﬂﬁlq& L%RIEEA?E uu°

NE- BERRE

NE BERREERFAEREL
ERftRE R I RBRIETHAE
ZEF  FPEETXMcERTR)
BRARE R Z5H i & & R R(E
EBR(IB)N GRS B BRRRALR -

FENRBERLIENE BE R
REEE(ERIERIN 2 EE A
ERFRDEERACRE L FIERE
E)ER - et LA FH - FER(E
ERFETERSK ﬁiﬁi%uf

A EHEMGAES R EET
%H
NE BERRBEREDINLER

iﬁ%$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéFﬁF
ERREENGRRIERZ - L&
AREYE F%& REBRME
EZENREBENREEZHERS
HEEEREBE ZHRHE

B AR o

95



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of
inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with original

maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as defined above.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated on the statement of financial position of

the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including loan receivables, trade
and other receivables, and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

*  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and

principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

»  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the credit period of 30 to 180 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the

financial assets' original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade, bills and other
receivables and amount due from a related company, where the carrying
amounts are reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade, bills or other receivable or amount due from a related
company is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other financial liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables and loan from
a director are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments

issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generation units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific

to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)

in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period

in which it is incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based payment
transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value of inventories and value
in use of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or

liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account

when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as

follow:

Level |  — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether transfer
occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities
which are measured at fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their

respective fair value measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Control over a subsidiary

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in EMAL R BERFEE
PR 2 7] (Life Healthcare (Beijing) Co., Ltd*) (“Life Healthcare"), the Group
is able to exercise control over Life Healthcare and its subsidiaries (*Life
Healthcare Group”) through a series of agreements with all of its ultimate
shareholders (the “VIE Agreements”).

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over Life Healthcare based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of Life Healthcare unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the Directors considered the Group's rights
through the VIE Agreements, and concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of Life Healthcare
and therefore the Group has control over Life Healthcare. Further details
are set out in note 34(d).

*  For identification purpose only {2 {2 % 5
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual residual value
and useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where residual
value or useful lives are less than previously estimated. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment as at 3|1 March 2017 is approximately
HK$16,219,000 (2016: HK$1,212,000).

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the end of
the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and slowmoving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete items.

If the market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable
value for such finished goods, additional allowances may be required.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of inventories of the Group was
approximately HK$3,676,000 (2016: approximately HK$2,158,000) after
impairment. Details of the allowance for inventories made during the year
are disclosed in note 9.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of the interest in an associate
is approximately HK$57,370,000 (2016: nil). Details of the interest in an
associate are disclosed in note |7. In determining the impairment loss of
interest in an associate, the amount of impairment for the interest in an
associate requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts for which the
Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform a valuation,
which makes reference to the relevant cash generating unit's profit and
cash flow forecast prepared by the management. The determination of
recoverable amount of interest in an associate involves estimates as to
growth rate of customers, operating costs and discount rate to be applied
for the purpose of deriving a recoverable value. Changes to these estimates
may result in significant change in the estimated recoverable amount. After
making such assessment, the directors of the Company are of the view that
no impairment loss was made for the interest in an associate as at 3| March
2017. Where the recoverable amounts are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of loan receivables and trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss of loan receivables
and trade and other receivables, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows of respective loan receivables and trade
and other receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amounts of the Group's
loan receivables and trade and other receivables were approximately
HK$86,000,000 (2016: nil) and HK$17,899,000 (2016: HK$4,481,000)
respectively. No impairment loss has been recognised during the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, issuance of new
shares as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEITAE
Categories of financial instruments BEIAEZER
2017 2016
—E—tE —T-—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FTAT
Financial assets BKEE
Loans and receivables B 3% e Wk
(including bank balances and cash) (BRRBRITH ﬁ%&fﬁ ) 81,688
Financial liabilities g 3=k
Amortised cost 55 PR 20,135

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
loan from a director. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

BHERBEEREREER
AEBZIBMBEIABRRERE
PoRBREZREMKR  RITE
BEkAT EBNESREMFAN
ERE-—REFZEF MBI
Z%ﬂﬁxﬁﬁW£&%°A&$
BHEIEAABZEARINTX -

manner. BEEREREEZSRRE BRERE
RERBEBRIEE EHE -

Market risk i % B

Currency risk B

The group entities collect most of its revenue and incurs most of the EEERERzABI WA RES

expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The directors of 27(*5 XHENBEERB 2 NEE

the Company consider that the Group's foreign currency exchange risk
is insignificant (except bank balances and prepayments for acquisition of
intangible asset) as the majority of the Group's transactions are denominated
in functional currency of each individual group entity.

BB AR T%%m%’mﬁ$
SEAENRIUNSERNEEER
N EBEE REAEEZIME
BRI ABERRITESLRBER

BEZBNFERI) -
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. A5EH ﬁfj/[ﬂﬂw Brkﬁsz 543@/*

However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated bank
balances and prepayments for acquisition of intangible asset at the end of

reporting period are as follows:

MBIE®
BHRERAREERRRBKRE)

mE Rk (&)

EBER (%)

REEHRR FEBUIIEEEL
BRIOTEBRIBEEVEECRANR
BZEEERT

HK$ BT
RMB ARE
United States Dollars (“US$") EyH(E )|

2017 2016
ZB—tF —T—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
TR THET

948

12,492

45

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group'’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in the functional currency of each group entity against relevant
foreign currencies and all other variables were held constant. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%

change in foreign currency exchange rates.

HREDM

TRAFIEEMAAE R TE
ZBERT BREERZNEEN
REBINEFHERZESHAEE
T EZHRE o BT AERE R 5%
REBBYIINEER, GEA E
BAERE - BREESFERRERX
EEUNEEEERRE - L55%
NEEXLEHHEZEENREH
KRBT -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A positive number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss for the year
where the relevant foreign currencies strengthens 5% against the functional
currency of each group entity. For a 5% weakening of the relevant foreign
currencies against the functional currency of each group entity, there would

be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss for the year and the

balances below would be negative.

MBIE®
BHRERAREERRRBKRE)

mE Rk (&)

ERER (&)

HREED(E)
TREBRFEAHEINELEEE
ER VB EHITES%E SR
FERBRERERND - HEHINE
AESBERINEERRE%
AEHRAREERBRBERERSTR
BRZFE MIXHEESRKE
REE-

Impact on post-tax loss for the year

RMB against HK$ ANRBRABETZZE
HK$ against RMB BTHARBZZE
US$ against RMB ETHRARBZRE

HAEERBRREBREZ

2017 2016
“E-t§ T R#E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
522

40

2

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-

rate bank balances.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However,

the management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the expected change in
interest rate will not have significant impact on the interest income on bank

balances, hence sensitivity analysis is not presented.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for follow-up action to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
loan receivables and trade and other receivables as set out in note 22 and
23 respectively at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on customers
of apparel retail sales, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties. Apparel retail sales are settled in either cash or via credit
cards issued by banks or other financial institutions. The credit risk on liquid
funds and credit card sales are limited because the counterparties are either
banks or other financial institutions with high credit ranking assigned by
credit-rating agencies, or state-owned banks. Certain sales of apparels are
made through shops in shopping malls and department stores and all cash
and credit cards payments from customers are received by shopping malls
and department stores on behalf of the Group. The credit risk on trade
receivables from those shopping malls and department stores are limited
because all shopping malls and department stores have good repayment
record.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk on trade receivables from
education software products and related services business as 73% (2016:
48%) of the total trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer based in the PRC and 73% (2016: 98%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group's largest one customer (2016: largest
three customers), which are mainly based in the PRC, as at 31 March 2017.
The credit risk on trade receivables from education software products and
related services business are limited because the trade receivables have

good repayment record.

The Group had concentration of credit risk of 819% (2016: nil) on loan
receivables from the Group's five largest loan debtors, as at 31 March 2017.
The credit risk on loan receivables is limited as all of the loan receivables are

secured by collaterals or no default payment is noted.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, all the financial liabilities are
repayable on demand or within 3 months after the end of the reporting
period, or repayable within one year from drawn down date. All the financial

liabilities are non-interest bearing,

Fair value measurements

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makers (“CODM") in
order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.
Relevant information was reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focusing on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

The Group is engaged into the following five operating segments for its
operations, each of which represents an operating and reportable segment
of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

|, Healthcare services in PRC

2. Money lending business

3. Education software products and related services business in PRC

4. Apparel retail business in PRC

5. Securities trading and investments business in Hong Kong

The healthcare services and money lending business segments are new
operating segments as a result of the commencement of these new
operations in the current financial period.

During the reporting period, the healthcare services segment was principally
engaged in (i) genetic testing and health data analysis services; and (ii)
technical services to convert health enquiries from public and distribute to
hospitals. The money lending segment principally eamns interest income from
loans advanced to its customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE -2 —+tF=A=+—HItFE

7.  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. BEHENIRBER S
Segment revenues and results e E S
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s turnover and results by T ARIEREEEDIE D AR
reportable and operating segments. ERVEXTENREENIT -
For the year ended 3| March 2017 B —E—F+F=H=+—HIFF
R
Education
software
products Securities
Money  and related Apparel trading and
Healthcare lending services retail  investments
Services business business business business Total
HBEYH

EmR %k BHEER
BRERE FEXF REXE FERE REREK )
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TERT TER TER TER TER

Turnover BT
External sales HINHE

Segment (loss) profit A (BER) &

Unallocated income AABRBA
Unallocated expenses & 9 B2 2 i}
Share of result of A5 —RE &
an associate LEE
Finance costs BBER

Loss before taxation BrEGAIE 1

114



ENEERERREEARAT
017 EFERE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M AT

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. EEBLOLER L)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) e EX AC-D)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE-FT— N NE=-HA=1+—HIF
3

Education
software
products Securities
Money  and related Apparel  trading and
Healthcare lending services retail  investments
Services business business business business Total
HEBRMN
Em&iEE REk E5BER
RERE GEXH REXE TEXH REXH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR THET TET THET

Tumover ERE

External sales HINAE - = 4787 327 - 5114
Segment loss PHER - - (8296) (3673) 8) (11977)
Unallocated income R B IRA 10,364
Unallocated expenses &7 Bt & i (32,728)
Finance costs MBEER -
Loss before taxation BRI RIER (34,341)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Gz M o ul @ 5L e B B SR 3BT
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. vAEES® uJF B MR o
Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss) profit resulted in each segment DEB (&) &M S 2 ST E 4 (&
without allocation of other income and gain and corporate expenses. This is BN TESBREMIKA RIKZE
the measure reporting to the Group's CODM for the purposes of resource UEARSTH B EDE R
allocation and performance assessment. RBIGMAERTELERETE

WE B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE -2 —+tF=A=+—HItFE

7.  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities
Amounts of segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reviewed
by the Group’s CODM or otherwise regularly provided to the CODM,

accordingly, segment assets and liabilities are not presented.

Other segment information
For the year ended 3| March 2017

Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of allowance for

inventories

nx - BER
REBFE
HENE  BER
R BR
HENE BER
Rz s
BOEREME
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Healthcare

services

fRER®
HK$'000
TER

Education
software
products

Money and related
lending services
business business

HERS

EmRAH

HEEHE REXK
HK$000  HK$000
TR THER

EXERDBEN@)
PTHEERRE
AEEZHBEERABEEAL
AEETIRZERRERMNAMUL
WAAEHERTBEERRE -
HARBEIDHEERAGE

Htto BEH
BE_ZF—+tF=A=1+—HI
FE

AESHMEERTACEE:

Securities
Apparel  trading and

retail investments

business business Unallocated Total
&5
R % BER
BEXK REXE KAIE @zt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TExr TER TERT THEx
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Money
Healthcare lending

services business

RERE BEXR

A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

Education
software
products

and related
services
business

HEHM

E i SR

% %1%

EXERIBER @)

Htt2 BER(E)
BE_T—NF=ZH=1—HIF
E

Securities
Apparel  trading and

retail investments

business business  Unallocated Total
A
i+ m
PR BEN

TEXH REXH AR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FTHExT THx TFTEx  FTExT  FTEHExT  TEx
Depreciation of property, MmE - BEREE
plant and equipment weE - - 642 84 - 1 768
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment HEZER - - - 16 - - 16
Allowance for inventories FERB - - 2929 879 - - 3,808
Impairment of goodwil BEEE = = 3,842 = = = 3,842
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HItFE

7.  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in PRC and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's turnover from external customers from
its operations is presented based on the location at which the goods or
services are delivered or provided. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the respective group
entity’s country of domicile. An analysis of the Group's revenue from
external customers and non-current assets are presented based on location
of assets as follows:

Non-current assets

FRBEE

2017

—2-tF

HK$°000

FERT
PRC o
Hong Kong BB

118

EXERIHEN D)
it E & H
AREZEEMBURFEALERS -

AEERBEXBNBEPZER
BEBHRE A XA & n 2k AT
REHHZI - AREERYE
EZERTIREEEMERENE

BT

AEEMAERRYEENNEEE
BRACEREAR REENER
NZAREERBIMBEP 2R
FRBEENMME :

/|

Revenues from external
customers from its operations
REEEE

HEREF 2 W
2016 2017 2016

e i
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TAX TR Tixn

5114

5114



ENEREREEARRAS
017 FFEWME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. BEERIBER B
Information about major customers FTEEXZFER
Detalils of the customers accounting for 10% or more of aggregate turnover EAREEBBEERE|I%HIA LI 2R
of the Group are as follows: FEHmT:
2016
—E-F
HK$'000
TET
Customer A ZEA 1926
Customer B XFB 762
Customer C ZEC 532
During the year ended 3| March 2017, none of the Group's individual BE_T—tF=-A=1T—HL#F
customer contributed more than 10% of the total turnover of the Group. B r&EEMERANEFPERAE
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the revenue of the above major i_@ & % BEEI0% BEZ /FS - g
customers is generated from education software products and related f: A o T _E UISE ED Ldxz
service business REBGEHE LN ERLERER
BERBEE -
OTHER INCOME AND GAIN
8. HthARW=
2017 2016
o A
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Bank interest income ;AT EUA 67
PRC loan interest income B E B F B A -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERZE KR
plant and equipment =
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary (Note) — — R Fi /B 722 7] 8 8 £ 2 W 2= (BT =) 10,297
Others H 1,030
11,394

119



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R MR
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8. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN (Continued) 8. HWARWKF &)
Note: Net liabilities of the deregistered subsidiary on the date of deregistration were as MizE: BEIMeWB AR RNEEEMmA
follows: Hra@FEEmT:
Total
st
HK$'000
TEX
Net liabilities derecognised: BRIEBRZBETH:
Other payables HoAth & 1 5/ I8 8,805
Release of translation reserve BROnE s 1,492
Gain on deregistration BeHE 2z s 10,297
Net cash outflow arising on deregistration BT EEAR S RLFE
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRR =
9. REVERSAL OF (ALLOWANCE FOR) INVENTORIES 9. FEEEEE)
At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company had RREBER ARBREZFAR
performed a detailed review on the net realisable value of aged inventories AEEBRKEECAEREE X
of the Group and recognised an allowance for inventories of nil (2016: BE_Z—tF=A=1t—HiL
HK$879,000) and a reversal of allowance for inventories of approximately FEEBRHELANEREZEE
HK$156,000 (2016: an allowance for inventories of HK$2,929,000) due to MEBREZEEBUARBE AR
subsequent sales of previously impaired inventories during the year ended FPHBRGEBZETERESR
31 March 2017 on certain aged inventories of apparel retail business and DHBRAFERBRT(ZZE—X
education software products and related service business respectively. F: 8790008 L) RO FEEEEL
156000 TL(=F—RF: FEHERE
2929000 7T) °
10. FINANCE COSTS l0. B8 M

2017 2016
ZE-tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT TAET

Interest on other loans (Note) HiER 2 F A F )

- In

Note: Interest was paid for the PRC loans from a third party which were unsecured, interest

bearing at 4.35% per annum and repayable within one year.

120

ME: FAENHRE-—RE=ZTZHEE
RMXf BFHERAEER BE
FME4BEFERAR—FREE-



ENEREREEHRAS
017 FFEWME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

1. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BRBATER
2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Loss before taxation has been arrived BR 5t Al BS 18 2 H1BR -
at after charging:
Staff costs 8 T & M
Directors’ emoluments (Note |3(a)) EEMe (M5 130)
— fees and other emoluments — e hEMME 6,559
Other staff costs H fh 8 T % B
— salaries, allowance and bonus —He RERELA 8,985
— retirement benefits scheme — RN F B
contributions Lell
[7,155
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRERAIZHFEKAR 4,842
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « BE MR ETE 768
Auditor’s remuneration e & 2,052
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERZE
plant and equipment BB l6
Exchange loss, net BE & 18 % #E -
Research and development costs recognised R A R X 2 I 3 K A
as an expense -
Operating lease rental on premises MELLEHERS 1,513
Legal and professional fees (included in FRENEXER
administrative and other expenses) GTATTHEEMAR) 17211

121



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR
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12.

INCOME TAX 12. FiBH
2017 2016
—B—+E —ZT-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET

Current tax: EVEARIE

— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH -
— PRC Enterprise income tax (“EIT") —PEGEREM(EEMER]) )
Income tax expense (credit) R (BR) ()

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and BVI for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 201 6.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the
consolidated financial statements for current tax in the year ended 31 March
2016 as the subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no assessable profit in that year.

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years. For the years ended 3| March 2017 and
2016, income tax represent PRC Enterprise Income Tax provided based on
the assessable profit of PRC subsidiaries.
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[2. INCOME TAX (Continued)
The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

ENEREREEARRAS
017 FFEWME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE B RS R R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

2. FrEH @)
AEEB7HERESEBR N EAM
cHMER BRATEEESERNT

2017 2016
—E—+HF —T—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Loss before taxation BR T A &5 18 (34.341)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of BARMMEHME65%
16.5% (2016:16.5%) (ZZ2—RF : 165%)aTHE 2 TR (5,666)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMAEERKEECERYZ
operating in other jurisdictions TAMEZXE (135)
Tax effect on share of loss of an associate HMABRD M —FTBERRZ
not recognised BEIBBERE -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AANBRAL cRETE
tax purpose 6,543
Tax effect of income not taxable for ERBBACHBET E
tax purpose (2,676)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses deductible/ AR BER A A R B ER/
temporary differences not recognised TREBIHEYE 1,930
Income tax for the year REEMEH 4)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from |
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$21,895,000 (2016: HK$21,427,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
unused tax losses of approximately HK$53,045,000 (2016: HK$67,403,000)
available for offset against future profits, which will expire in five years and
deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$2,641,000 (2016:
HK$959,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses and the deductible temporary differences due to unpredictability
of future profit streams.

BEFRCEREHREZ B-2FF
NE—A— B BEKEA AR
Bz S ABMBNE - AR
AEEERHBOTREB2ER -
BEEMEREREIEIERT LY
R - K R BT B A R AT R
B 1 75 2R 2 B B 2= 6 4921,895,000
BIL(ZT— 78 1 2142700058 7T)
AT RREDBELER B -

RBEHR AEE2HBEHEAR
875 49530450008 T (=8 — R F -
6740300078 7T ) 2 K B FA L 7% B 1B
HIEARKREN B REE M
AR E R ZEA426410008 (=
T — N4 19590008 TT) o BN K AL
FEEE R & A RR - B RS
ERERAMRERZERAETH
HEE-
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' 3. E5 - FETBAEBREEM
EMOLUMENTS £
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EERIZTHAEM:
Executive directors  Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
EG £ FUES BUFHAES
Hua Wang Feng Yau Zheng Liu Zhang Zhou
For the year ended Yunbo  Shan Hua Liang  Xiaogang  Yan Ming lauYu  Chunlei  Xinghua ~ Xuyang Jian
31 March 2017 (Notej)  (Notek) ~ (Notel)  (Notea) (Noteb) (Notec) (Notef)y (Noteg) (Noteh)  (Noteg) Total
&xR  B& I% RRE B gF HEE  AX&  KER B
BE-3-tFzR=T-BLEE (W) (MraEk)  (WEED  (Wraa) (WaEb) (W&Ec) (WEEN) (Mg (WiEh) (Mg &

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O00 HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TEx TRz TEx TRz Tz TEr TEr TER TEx TEx  TEn

Emoluments paid or receivable i~ SEAEFEE
respect of a person's senvicesasa  (THARAT,
director, whether of the Company £ B2 A& %)
orits subsidiary undertaking BBEENIELHS

Fees we
Other emoluments B
Salaries X
Contribution to retirement RINEHEIER S

benefits scheme

Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiTEE FUTES BUFHIES
Hua Huang Zhang Wang Feng Zhang Yau Zheng
For the year ended Yunbo  Shan Hua Limin~ Jack Jiyei Liang ~ Xiaogang  Bao Yuan  Yan Ming LauYu  Chunlei
31 March 2016 (Note))  (Notek) (Noted) (Notee)  (Notel) (Notea)  (Notei) (Noteb) (Notec)  (Notef) Total
LRR g4 RHR REE Iz BEE  FEn HEH 7 &
BE-E-AEZAZ1-ALEE (Wa)  (Wio  (Mid)  (Mike) (WD (Wia)  (W&ED (Wb (KBEo  (WE)D et

HK$000  HK000  HK$000  HKPOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO000  HK$000  HKSO0O  HKF000
TEr ThRn TRz TExr TEx TEr TEr TEn  TRn  TEn  TEx

Emoluments paid or receivablein ~ FEAAETES
respect of a person's senvices asa (RARRFH
director, whether of the Company ~ EHB A AE#)
orits subsidiary undertaking BREAAELHE

Fees ok = = = = = = - 240 240 240 720
Other emoluments 24
Salaries % 200 697 80 1,290 1,220 1,820 473 - - - 5,780
Contribution to retirement RINEHIFEIRE
benefits scheme - - - 14 17 17 I - - - 59
200 697 80 1,304 1,237 1,837 484 240 |44 |44 6559
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[3. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

()

Dr. Feng Xiaogang was re-designated to non-executive director of the company
on |5 February 2016.
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond resigned on 22 August 2016.

Mr. Lau Yu resigned on |2 September 2016.

Mr. Huang Limin resigned on |3 April 2015.

Mr. Zhang Jack Jiyei was appointed as executive director on |3 April 2015 and
resigned on |7 December 2015.

Mr. Zheng Chunlei was appointed as independent non-executive director on 3|
December 2014.

Mr. Liu Xinghua and Mr. Zhou Jian were appointed as independent non-

executive director on |2 September 2016.

Ms. Zhang Xuyang was appointed as independent non-executive director on 22
August 2016.

Mr. Zhang Bao Yuan resigned on |5 February 2016.

Mr. Hua Yunbo was appointed as President and executive director and Chairman
of the Board on |5 February 2016.

Ms. Shan Hua was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and executive director
on |7 December 2015.

Mr. Wang Liang has been re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director and chairman to vice-chairman of the Board on |5 February
2016 and resigned on 22 August 2016.

The amounts for the year ended 31 March 2016 included bonus paid to
Mr. Wang Liang and Dr. Feng Xiaogang of HK$100,000 and HK$ 150,000
respectively. The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference

to the individual's performance (2017: nil).

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the year ended
31 March 2017 and 201 6.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E—Z—+F=A=+—HItFE

3. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two
(2016: three) were directors or chief executive officer of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2017. The emoluments of these directors
are included in the disclosures in note |3(a) above. The emoluments
of the remaining three (2016: two) individuals for the year ended 31
March 2017 were as follows:

3. EE-XTETHAEREEM
€®)
b) EEME
Bz - ZT—+&#=A=+—H
tFEE AEEREHEEHA
THh WE(CE-—NE:=8)
BRARRAEZTRITHAR - %
EEEMERN EXHEI3E)
FE-BHEZ_ZT—+F=A
=+-HLEFE HT=%(Z
Z-R"FMB)ATZHE W

Salaries and other allowances HoMEMmET
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RAKEFIET Bt 5%

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

N

2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
2,348
120
30
2,498

MeNFUTEHE :
2017 2016
—g-tE —T-X%
No. of No. of
employees employees

EEAB EEAH

Not more than HK$ 1,000,000 R % 53 1,000,000 7 7T I
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T Z 2,000,000 7T I

No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors of
the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

14. DIVIDENDS 4. RE
No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during both years, nor has PREEERERMNS  BRIBIR
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period. FEKRE  BREHRBINELM

BRIRR

. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on the KNARIEBIRERNE#SER IR
following data: THEHNE:
2017 2016
—e—tf —T-Af
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEE  FAR
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted FESREAREEBECER
loss per share
— loss for the year attributable to owners —ARRFEEAREFANEE
of the Company 34,337
2017 2016
—E-t§ —IZ—F
’000 '000
TR TR
(Restated)
(E51)
Number of shares RH#E
Weighted average number of FAEEREAREERE L
ordinary shares for the purpose of basic @R hnE T 19 21
and diluted loss per share 2594818
The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic and diluted AEEREARBESRBECERR
loss per share has been adjusted for rights issue on 8 March 2017. MEFHHER T —LF=AN
HZBBRIELBE -
There were no share option of the Company outstanding, granted, RZE—+tFRZ-ZZF-X"F=H
exercised, cancelled or lapsed as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 nor any =+—B KAARUERHKTE:
movement of the Company’s share options during the years ended 3| ERL - BEITHE FHEIXEARZ
March 2017 and 2016. BRE ADFRZBREREES
T—tERZE-—RE=ZA=1—
H 1 B TR E A (] &
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE -2 —+tF=A=+—HItFE

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l6. N¥ BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor
equipment  improvements vehicles Total
BW - £E HE
SET] NEE£E "E @t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TR TAL TR TAL

COST B
At | April 2015 W-Z-REMA—A 213 375 1403 3910
Additions NE 205 [17 = 322
Disposals/write-off HE /s (942) (367) - (1,309)
Exchange realignment R (66) (8) (57) (131)

At 31 March 2016

R-E-"E=A=1-H

Additions NE
Disposals &
Fxchange realignment 5
At 31 March 2017 R-F-tF=A=t-H

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RERAEER
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At | April 2015 RZE-RAFNA—-H | 546 375 259 2,180
Provided for the year KEERE 188 | 579 768
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HER /M (926) (367) = (1293)
Exchange realignment [ 5§ B (47) ® (20) (75)
At 31 March 2016 R=F-A¥=A=t-H
Provided for the year AEERE
Eliminated on disposals in & B ¥ 8
Exchange realignment I 5

At 31 March 2017

R-_E—+tF=ZA=+—-H

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2017

REE

vz

At 31 March 2016

R-E-"E=A=+-H

568 [16 528 1,212

LEhE BERRBERAZFE
TINBERERATERFE

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of term of HENERE BT F

the lease or 7 years (BREERE)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 7 years Bl RERFE 3E7F
Motor vehicles 3to 10 years AE 3EI0F
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

[7. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
The reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented above

to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate is set out below:

7. R—RBERR 2R
EXMZA BB ERRN
FBMERAR RERAELHEE
SR ONNE

2017 2016
“E-t§ T R#%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET

Costs of investments in an associate
Share of post-acquisition loss and
other comprehensive expenses

N—REZRAREKAK
DERBRERREM2EMX

On | August 2016, the Group entered into agreement with two
independent third parties (the “Vendors") to acquire 30% equity interest in
BN EImEYEBRMBR 2 R] (Guangzhou Manrui Biotech Company
Limited") (“Manrui Biotech”) at an agreed consideration of RMB60,000,000
which comprised of a cash consideration of RMB3,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,360,000) and the issuance of 245,890,890 shares by
the Company to the vendors at the issue price of HK$0.266 per share
totalling approximately HK$65,407,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB56,250,000) (the “Consideration Shares™).

The acquisition was completed on 5 August 2016 and the fair value of the
Consideration Shares on completion amounted to HK$61,473,000 (based
on the market price of HK$0.25 at completion date).

*  For identification purpose only

R-_E—R"ENA—B A£EH
MeEBYE=AEHD L
NEEMNEBRENEBRMBR
AABHEM 0% #E - HE
REBAAR®600000007T &% 6
EREREARK3750000T(HE
A #)436000078 7T) R R R AR E 1T
BEK0266BTMEHETRED
A654070008 T(HERHARE
56,250,000 ) Z 245,890,890R% i 15 ([
B ]) -

BEEER-_Z- "F/\HAB%
B AR TR B 8 2 802578
T E TRERERNHZATE
A 6147300078 7T ©

129



LIFE HEALTHCARE GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA SRR MEE
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[7. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Manrui Biotech also held 40% equity interest in a subsidiary of the Company
MMENES @B ERAR] (“HZLH") and the Group had effectively
acquired an additional 12% equity interest in HZLH through the acquisition
of Manrui Biotech. As at the time of acquisition, fair value of the 12%
equity interest in HZLH amounted to approximately HK$704,000 and
such amount was deducted from the investment cost of Manrui Biotech as
consideration for acquisition of the additional 2% equity interest in HZLH.

Manrui Biotech specialises in research and development of genetic testing
technologies, and in particular non-invasive cancer screening and diagnosis.
Manrui Biotech has successfully developed diagnostic technologies for

detecting circulating tumor cells. Please refer to the announcements of

7. R—RBEQNR 2R @)
BIMENNEEARA—ZHEA
AmMNENMZE2RBMBER AR
MNER])40%ME RAEEE K
FTEBWEEREMMIERMNE
MBI %R E - RETREZE
B M ER %R EZATEED
A7040008 L EHeEE ENE
M REMRARMG - AERWE
TN EFNZEIN D% RHE 2 (B -

BiRENFEFLEREERRAR
ﬁ LERERIBRGERDH -
BImAEME R E L RAERRE
r@mm g ARREZER

the Company dated | August 2016 and 9 August 2016 for details of the JHE ZE2EANTEBHAE-Z
acquisition. —~"ENA-BERZZE—RFNA
NBZ M-
As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had interest in the following RNR-E—FH+EF-F E =A
associate: =+—-8 'A% IE/\MTH =N
HARER
Proportion of
Country of Place/Principal ownership interests or
Form of incorporation/  place of Class of participating shares held Proportion of
Name of entity entity registration operation shares held by the Group voting power held Principal activity
AR/ BE/ rREMRAERER
ERAH ERFA  ERMER  IEEEBE ARRGERN  S2RROFEWS  FEREEFERA TEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF “TRF ZB-tf _2F
Manrui Biotech Incorporated ~~ PRC PRC Ordinary - Research and development of
BhEN RaiAv i i LBk genetic testing technologies
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

The summarised financial information in respect of an associate of the

Group since the acquisition of its 30% equity interest on 5 August 2016 is

accounted for using equity method is set out below:

Manrui Biotech

7. R—RBEQNR 2R @)
BE-E—A"FENAREBREH30%
AR DA TR 3% 4 25 0K A BR 2 7K £ B
BRRIZHBENBEEINNT -

BIEN

2017
=
HK$'000
TER

Current assets mEE E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mEe &
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Period from
5 August 2016
(the date of
acquisition)
to 31 March
2017
BE-2-RE
NBEH
(Wig R
E-E-tF
=A=t+—-H
1E HA
HK$’000
TER
Revenue W&
Loss for the period AHREER
Other comprehensive expense Hi2HRX
Total comprehensive expense PHEMAX A
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE =T —tF=A=+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17 A—RBERRA 2 E® %)
Manrui Biotech (Continued) BIRENE)
The reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented above Y2V ZHEER B EEN —
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate is set out below: AN EREAEZHES
e
2017
“E8-tHF
HK$’000
FHR
Net assets of the associate BERRZBERE
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in RNEBREREY 2B EEZRL A

Manrui Biotech

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEEREREN  ERREE
Manrui Biotech
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18. GOODWILL 18. BE
HK$’000
TR
COST B
Asat | April 2015, 31 March 2016 R-_ZE-—HAFNA—RB ZZ2—RF
and 3| March 2017 ZAZt-RAR-E—tF=A=+—H
IMPAIRMENT B
Asat | April 2015 RZZE-—hEMA—H
Impairment RE
As at 31 March 2016 and 3| March 2017 R-ZE-—REZHA=+—RBARZE—LF
=A=+—H
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 3| March 2017 R-_F-—t&=A=+—H
At 31 March 2016 N-F-R"E=ZA=1+—H
The carrying amount of goodwill was related to the cash-generating unit BHEEABEERSEZE_T—1F
of education software products and related services business which was AT HUEEERMRBHAR
acquired during the year ended 31 March 2015. HEMMHBERGEB 2 RSES
BUE#-
The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value WEM AN EEBEEREERE
in use calculation. For impairment purpose, the calculation uses cash flow BFEZET -HREMS A@
projections based on the financial budgets approved by management for SEFNRREEREMBEERE L
the coming year and using a discount rate of 10.65% and the cash flow HHREGH R RERA R
from 2nd year onwards are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. Another BEI0SHEL ME_FRZR
key assumption for the value in use calculation relates to the estimation of ERMENKRTERERE-FHAE
cash inflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation BtEiz RS —BEERK S LS
is based on the unit's past performance and management’s expectations BenmA(ORBREHERRENEX)
for the market development. As the recoverable amount of the cash- FiEfhet - R DEARN BB
generating unit of education software products and related services ARBUREEEEMBERECHE
business is lower than its carrying amount, an impairment of HK$3,842,000, H{EL - ARBAERHERRIAHE
which represented the full amount of goodwill has been recognised during REXRB2HREEEEM 2
the year ended 31 March 2016. SHERAEREE HREE_T

—ANFEZA=+-BHIEFERAER
HIE38420008TT(HEEE2HLE) ©
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19. TRADEMARK 9. B
HK$'000
FTAT
COST ﬁSzZIK
As at | April 2015, 31 March 2016 and R_ZE—RFMEA—H ZF—R%F
31 March 2017 :H:+ BN —F— tE:HEJr—EI 2,500
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION EtEERRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
As at | April 2015, 31 March 2016 and RZZE-—RFMNA—H ZFT—R"%F
31 March 2017 ZA=+T—BEk=Z%— tE:HEJr—H (2,500)
CARRYING VALUES REE
As at | April 2015, 31 March 2016 and R_ZE-HhFEFMNA—-RB ZZT—RF
31 March 2017 :H:Jr—El&_f—tﬁ:H:Jr—El -

The trademark represents brand name used in apparel retail business which
was acquired from third party and amortised on a straight-line basis over 20
years. The carrying amount of the trademark has been fully impaired during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Since there was no indication of the reversal of impairment loss during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017, the trademark was continued to be
fully impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E=—Z—+F=A=+—HILFE

20. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF INTANGIBLE ASSET

On 30 April 2015, the Group, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
(the "Distributor™), entered into two distribution agreements (the
“Distribution Agreements”) for a term from 30 April 2015 to 3| March
2017 (the “Term") with an independent licensor (“Licensor”), pursuant to
which the Distributor was appointed as the exclusive authorised distributor
and vested with the rights of distribution and marketing of the mobile
versions (including on the Android and iOS platforms) of the games “Neon
Genesis Evangelion” (FTEAZBE &) and “Sakura Wars” (BB{ERE)
(collectively referred as to the “"Games”) and their related products in the
PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (the "“Authorised Regions”). Pursuant
to the Distribution Agreements, the Distributor shall pay an amount
equivalent to 25% of its income received from the distribution of the
Games to the Licensor as licence fees (the “License Fees”). The Distributor
shall make a prepayment of RMBI3 million under each of the Distribution
Agreement (i.e. RMB26 million (approximately HK$31,181,000) under
both Distribution Agreements in aggregate) to the Licensor by instalments
according to the stage of development and distribution of the Games, which
will be deducted from the licence fees payable after commencement of
distribution of the Games. RMB 0 million (approximately HK$12.49 million)
in aggregate was paid to the Licensor during the year ended 31 March 2016
as prepayments (“'First Prepayment’).

20 WREVEEZRNRE

R-_ZE—hEWMA=1+H £A£H
BREFEZENBAR(DHERE])
HEVRTEETA(ETRER
FADRISZmH 2832 85
2)) FHH-_T-AENA=+
BE-_F—+&#=A=+—-HB(U#
H) Bl DHEEEZEABER
BRESHES  EEERTR FE -
Bk B((REBE]) D HEKE
Bt Ess L] R BIERE]
PR (A TR < FilR (B
Android RIOSFE &) R EMHB@EM °
BESERE DEBARSTE
BYAZNEFEB(HHEER]) -
CHEMEREDHEERMBHRALZ
V% DB EARBESND D EHZ
R R D SRS B () 4 A
BYADBEMNAR®I3000000
TAMOAERBEARTARE
26,000,000 7T (4731,181,0007% 7T)) * &
BENRESRNERD HEREZB
BHEERNR BE_T—RF
AT HLEFEERFTRER
FTAZHE £ AR 10,0000007T(4
12,490,000/ 7T) fE R TE R 5K IB ([ & H
FERARIE]) o
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20. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF INTANGIBLE ASSET
(Continued)

The Licensor shall refund the First Prepayment, in full and with interest
accrued thereon, to the Distributor and the Distributor is entitled to
terminate the relevant Distribution Agreement upon the occurrence of
any of the following events after the payment of the First Prepayment: (a)
no income is generated from the Distributor's operation of the relevant
Game or the income generated does not adequately cover the Licence Fees
payable to the Licensor during the Term; or (b) the Licensor is unable to
complete the testing of the relevant Game or release the relevant Game in
the Authorised Regions according to the milestone dates as set out in the

Distribution Agreements.

In view of the Licensor fails to complete the testing and release of the
relevant Games in the Authorised Regions on or before the milestone
dates, the Distributor and the Licensor agreed to terminate the Distribution
Agreements and entered into the termination agreements on 3 June 2016
("Termination Agreements™). Pursuant to the Termination Agreements, the
parties shall release and discharge each other from its respective obligations
under the Distribution Agreements and the Licensor shall return the
prepayment of RMBIO million within 5 business days from the date of the
Termination Agreements. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 3 June 2016. During the year ended 3| March 2017,

the Group has received the refund of RMBI0 million.
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ERNETERTARENEEZAH
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 H = =

%éﬂﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi

—tF=A=+—RAL%E

INVENTORIES 2. RE
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Consumables HFEm 218
Finished goods Bk | 940
2,158
LOAN RECEIVABLES 2. EWER
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FTAT
Secured loan receivables el BB ER c

At 31 March 2017, loans to third parties with an aggregate principal
amounting to HK$86,000,000 (2016: nil) are secured, bear interest ranging
from 9% to 19% per annum and are repayable within one vyear and thus
classified as current assets. The loan receivables are due for settlement at
the date specified in the respect loan agreement.

As at 31 March 2017, loan receivables amounting to HK$86,000,000
(2016: nil) together with interest receivables from the same third parties of
approximately HK$4,072,000 (2016: nil) included in other receivables were
guaranteed by independent third parties and secured by the corresponding
borrowers’ equity interest.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the directors of the Company
have individually assessed and considered that there is no indication of
impairment on the loan and interest receivables. No impairment loss of loan
and interest receivables was recognised in profit or loss.

E—+HE=A=+-B #£7F
77 7K & 48 %8.86,0000007 T ( =
NEBCERBBERRA &
FH® A?WEinﬁQ&EW
_$W1§i ﬁ[’\* %/}Ib@]é?o
RUEEFREERBBEMEBE LA
HZ| 5 E -

i
%
T—

R-_E—+tF=ZR=+—08 ' EK
A — %EEZTW%%%%%E
(ZE—XNF: B)BEREKFNEY
4www%nx_7 NEE)EFA
HthElE WEBVE=HE
REABREIED 2 IRBEEHE R o

BE_T—tF=-A=+—HIt#H
B AR ESCEBIFHLRA
BUREFEANETEREDR - #
ERNERERERERRFE 2R
B8 -
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22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the loans draw down date
at the end of the reporting periods is as follows:

2. ERER®)
RBESHER REZIRRB AL
ERERZREDITNOT

2017 2016

R e
HK$’000 HK$'000
THL  TER

91 to 180 days 9IE180H
Over 180 days 180 B I

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the due date at the end of
the reporting periods is as follows:

RBEHR RIAHE2FIEKE
L IRER DI :

2017 2016
—E-t&E Z—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET

Neither past due nor impaired REBAMARE
Past due: BEa
| to 90 days | £90H

Included in the Group's loan receivables are debtors with aggregate amount
of HK$76,000,000 (2016: nil) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
directors of the Company believed that the amount was recoverable, after
taking into account of the full settlement received subsequent to the year
end date.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23 ERESGREMKE

Trade receivables FEWRE 538
Prepayments and deposits BNRELRRE
Other receivables H b fE UL FUR
Interest receivables FE I F 8

Apparel retail sales conducted through outlet shops and e-commerce
platforms are normally settled in cash or Alipay (“32 1 & "), or by credit
card with the settlement from the corresponding banks or other financial
institutions within 7 days. For receivables from retail sales conducted
through authorised distributor, the Group allows a credit period of 14 days.
For receivables from sales of education software products and provision of
technical support services, the Group allows a credit period ranging from
30-180 days. For receivables from healthcare services, the Group allows a
credit period ranging from 30180 days.

2017 2016
—E—+E —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FTExT
3,262
[,100
[19

448
ERTEERETHAEFAENTZ
REZEHE—RUBLEAINAE

FAERAREREBARTIEMY
BHRENTAERNEN RAEESES
FIETTEHE CRKFEMS
AEBERTZEESRARI4B - B
EHXEUMHERRRBEREN SRR
BeRERBZENS AEBH T
EEHNTF0ZE 1800 - RiEERS
LEMZEMNE AEBLETZE
BN F30ZE 808 -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

BHREZREMRES
RBEHR REZEBH2TIER
BHRBZREDTMT :

2017 2016
ZB—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET

Within 90 days =N

91 to 180 days 9IZEI180H
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H
Over | year | F Ak

56

1,632
1,568

3,262

The Group has policy of providing allowance for doubtful debts which
is based on the evaluation of collectability and age of accounts and on
management'’s judgement including credit worthiness and past collection
history of each customer.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$390,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$3,206,000)
which are past due as the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The directors considered that trade
receivables which are neither past nor yet impaired are of good credit
quality and there are continuous subsequent settlements.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 EWEZLHEHMTEE)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which are past due but EERmEBARREZEKWE S HEIR
not impaired, based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: WMEHMKREZAHAE BRI
mE
2017 2016
“E-t§ ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THRT THET
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 H 6
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H 1,632
Over | year | F Ak 1,568
3,206
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 14 RTEBRRRE
Bank balances carry interest at average market rates of 0.01% (2016: 0.01%) RITRBRIET S THEME00IE(Z
per annum. T—RF 001 E)FE
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 5. BREZFREMESHE

25.

2017 2016
—g-tf —T-AA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEL TR

Trade payables
Deposit received
Accruals and other payables

ENEH5UR
BIRRE
JERT & A R E A B 5UR

[ 331

1,331
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25.

142

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) CERESREMENTIESE)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the RBEER REZHH2 5 ERN
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BEREZERESITOT
2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Within 90 days HA -
91 to 180 days 91 % 180 H =

Included in trade payables as at 3|1 March 2017, balance of approximately
HK$503,000 (2016: nil) is a payable to an associate in relation to the
subcontracting services and purchases of goods.

The credit period granted by suppliers is normally 30 to 90 days as at 31
March 2017 (2016: nil). The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

RZE—+F=A=+—H" Ef
2 5 FIE B I E 524750300058 (=
T—RNFE) DR HEABRE

K&

)Iﬂ]ﬁ

EmEN—RBE AR A °

R-_E—+FE=B=+—8" #E
BRTZEER BN T0E0R (=
T-RF8) AEECHITE
ﬂﬁaﬁﬁ CBRATEENRE
REEBRAEE -
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LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR 26. RE—RESEZEX

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year from s AEEEA 2R RARNE

the drawn down date. BB —FERNER o

SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRA&

Number of Nominal
shares value
RHOEAE H{E
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each on RZE—tFERZT—RF
31 March 2017 and 2016 ZA=t-HEREE0ET
gl 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each on RZFE-AFHA-BRERZT—RF
| April 2015 and 31 March 2016 ZA=+T—-HBREEIETL
R R 2144421760 21,444
Issue of shares for acquisition of an SEUEE — KB DRI B ITRD (P aEa)
associate (Note a) 245,890,890 2,459
Issue of shares under rights issue (Note b) BEMIEETIRG (HiEb) 2,390,312,650 23,903
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each on RZZE—tF=A=+—H
31 March 2017 BREBE0IBTERR 4780625300 47,806
All of the shares issued by the Company during the year rank pari passu in ERN ARAFRGZEIBROR
all respects with other shares in issue. EFEREMERTRMHEERE
i

Notes: B 3% -

) On 8 August 2016, the Company issued share capital for acquisition of Manrui @ R-E-—XENANB - KAFGREK
Biotech. BRI EMBITRE -

(b) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at an (b) BERANABRER-_FT—+E - A
extraordinary general meeting on 7 February 2017, the Company announced a rights +tRABAYREREACAB S
issue (“Rights Issue™) of 2,390,312,650 rights shares (“Rights Shares") of HK$0.01 each BRER AN EE HY2390312650
at a subscription price of HK$0.126 per Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share IR IR EE 00! 78 7T 2 A B AR 1 ([ i
for every one share held. The Rights Issue was completed on 8 March 2017, the AR PR R ) DA B2 B2 (B B IR A IR IR 15 0.126
Company allotted and issued 2,390,312,650 Rights Shares. Accordingly, the Company EITREEE BB MERE B
increased its issued share capital by nominal value of approximately HK$23,903,000 R B 1) 2 BE s 4T BR ([ AR |) o fit
with net proceeds of approximately HK$291,656,000. BR—_FBE—+E=B\BTHK AR

] Bp % I 3 172,390,312,650 % it A% %
oAl RARABEHHBBITERA
Y5 T {E 32 0 4923903,0007 T 0 FT &
FIEF B L 529165600078 TC ©
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

On I'l April 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters, service providers to
the Group (“Participants”) who the board of directors considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or shall contribute to the Group. The Old
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on |l April 2002. Under the Old Scheme, the board of directors of the

Company may grant options to the Participants to subscribe for shares in

the Company.

On 18 September 2012, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme") with an effective period of 10 years commencing
on |18 September 2012. The Old Scheme expired on |0 April 2012. The
principal terms (including the purpose and participants) of the New Scheme
are similar to the Old Scheme. All other provisions of the Old Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted under the Old
Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Old Scheme until expiry of the said
options. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any other schemes
of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issued as

at the date of the passing of the resolution on refreshment of the mandate

limit of the New Scheme on 26 August 2014, i.e. 214,442,176 shares.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017 and the date of this annual report, no options granted
or outstanding available for issue under the New Scheme. No option
may be granted to any Participant of the New Scheme such that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to
the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained
pursuant to requirements under the New Scheme and the Listing Rules.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the board of directors
of the Company and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant.
There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. Participants of the New Scheme are required to pay the
Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on the offer date. The
subscription price of the options is determined by the board of directors of
the Company in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the highest
of:

a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s dail
g P g Y
quotation sheets on the date of the grant, which must be a business
day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quote sheets for five trading days immediately preceding the date

of grant; or

(c) the nominal value of a share.

There were no share option of the Company outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 nor any
movement of the Company's share options during the years ended 3|
March 2017 and 201 6.

28. UROBER 2ARE

DURELERBRETE(E)
RZE—+tF=ZRA=+—BRAEAF
WMAH FAEAETHESRL K
WMATEERE - RENTE R
TRAIZBRTE - BRIFEREAE
BRARBESERE BB 2 ERI2
EAEE AERHFFE2E[MES
HEFRLBRE BJFERTEER
FTIEETFTRALT ZEREMES
EBTFRITIROEERBBARNT
PRZBEBITRAN 1% BRENR
BHFAECBERIRARAEZSE
EZHERTMBRER L B BE T+
FRABBTUAITE - IRE2ER
BRETEAFANTEREEEH
RZHEE - N B B NERE
B HErdlc 2 BERARARAX
0BT - BRELREEAAD
RAESE2RNBEE  EAEE
RTINEEZHERE

@ BRORRLHBEH(BEARER
B)EB RS A RE XK
ZWHE

b) BOREZRRLBHALE
EXHEBIHBERESR
PR FRmE 3K

© MKip<mEE-

R-E—+ER_FT—RFE=f
=+—B KAREEHKITE:
ERL - BEAFE FHIRRL
BRE ARRZERERBE =
T—tER-ZE-—R"E=ZR=1—
AIEFENETMES -
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29. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

29.

KeEwsE

AEBEREREA

REEHR AEERTAHEL
EROREARKEREREE
HBWT:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year F_EFHF
Over five years AFENE

2017 2016
—E—+E —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FTExT
2,263

872

3,135

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and shops. Leases are negotiated for one to
twelve years with fixed monthly rentals over the lease term.

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance since
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme (capped at HK$ 1,250 per
month effective in June 2012 and HK$1,500 per month effective in June
2014), which contribution is matched by employee.
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30.

KEHEFRBRASHERE THA
ENERBREN T HHE
ER—ET -5 HHEAAEERT -

BIKERGE

AEBRE2BAEAREREER
B B EI([REEETE) -
BRELHEANE_ETETE T A
RREE S MEAES T EEHIHIE
FECEERARBCEENFE
B ULNRETAMEG CEEE
B AEEZAAE MW$Z%W
BEEHEELER(R=2F—=F
ﬁﬂi&Zt@%#ﬂmw%ﬁ&
RZE-—NEARBERZLERASE
A1500/87T)  BES 2 HRER o
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC government.
The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
state retirement schemes in the PRC based on certain percentage of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specific contributions.

During the year, the employer's contribution to the MPF Schemes and
various benefits schemes in the PRC is HK$100,000 (2016: HK$151,000)
and HK$2,262,000 (2016: HK$1,460,000) respectively.

The contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme and state
retirement schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when employees have rendered
service to the Group.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Other than the related party transactions as disclosed in notes 26, the
Group had the following related party transactions:

(@)

Transactions with related companies

30. BIKERGE (2
FENBARZEEHZEFBK
RMERZRAKBHGTE - ZFHBE
FEMNB AR AKRREREE AF
ZEFEAS AT EREREKTE
EHER UZXHEBERHN - A%
Bz ERENEzE—EEA
YEH I E SR o

REAEE EXRRBE2FTE LD
BZERMFTEMERRID A
100,000 7t( = T — /X & : 151,000
BI) K 22620008 T (ZF — R~ F -
| 460,000 7T)

AEBREE S 8 RE KRR
SIFMEH N E R RAKE R KR
BREGaBRE R EME2ERER
bR

(i) Subcontracting cost payable to an associate (i) B —REt & N &2
INHEBER
(ii) Purchases from an associate (i M — R & QN E T

3. BEATR G RGEH
BRI 2T BEREA LRSI
AEBEZETTIEBEBALRS

@ HEEQTAZRS
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—RE
HK$°000 HK$000
THT FHT
R -

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii) above do not
constitute connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

BEEFTRBAEHAZ F K
FXEONRHZBEALIRS
VTABREERHHITERE

25
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued) 3. BEALTRG REtRE)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) TEEBAEMS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management BEENEMTIETERERKER
during the year was as follows: AEBZMEWT :
2017 2016
“B-tE —T-R%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 8,008
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RN G2 77
8,085
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by EERFETHAEZMET
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of mAFEMEESRENEIRE
individuals and market trends. RSB ELRE
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 3. EXRAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital RBERR REBFNUTE R
commitments: 7
2017 2016
“EBE-+tF —TRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Contracted for but not provided for SEATEBEETHNERR
in the consolidated financial statements BEMBRmKRPEE:
in respect of:
— intangible assets (Note) —mEE M) 18,696
— property, plant and equipment — W% BB R®R =
18,696
Note:  Such commitments were subsequently released upon the signing of the termination et ARAREEBRR-Z-—REAAZ
agreements on 3 June 2016. For details, please refer to the announcement of the AEFTRIEHAGERR - B
Company dated 3 June 2016, BEELHBARRIBHA-T— R4

NA=B 2R

148



33.

34.

ENEREREEHRAS

017 FFEWME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

As detailed in note 17, 30% equity interest in Manrui Biotech was acquired,
part of the consideration was settled through issuance of 245,890,890 shares
by the Company with aggregate fair value of HK$61,473,000 at completion
date.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and  Issued and paid-up/
operation registered ordinary share
Name AR/ BERTRME
% RIREERY /HREER
Directly held subsidiary
EENELR
Tack Fiori International Group Limited ~ BVI USDI
RERKEE XN
Indirectly held subsidiaries
B E AR
Tack Fiori Corporate Services Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS
BA BT
Real Victor Limited Hong Kong HKS
EEFRAA &b BT
HFEENR)REBRAR  PRC RMBI,000000
([BFEN]) (Noteb) (Hiztb)  HE AR %1,0000007C
HERE(LR)EEARAR  PRC HK$41,200000
((BERE]) (Notea) (H5Fa) 4120000078 7T

ﬁ-?é

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H = =

Eﬂ%i&%[‘ﬁ%

—tF=A=+—RAL%E

33. EXKBRERS
B I7A A T B ER A

1) 7 30%B% HE
“Tﬁmﬁaﬂﬁ”“$

BARENERAN
B

61,473,000/ JT Z 245,890,890 B% A% 17

ZTTAER -

4, KRR ETEMB AR ZHE

RZE—tFR-_F—
=t+t—-B AQATEWBA

HEMT

Proportion ownership

interest and voting power

held by the Company
ARAMBHEEER

RERELA
2017
_g ‘t$ ?

2016
—RE

~NE=R
alZ

Principal activities

IREHR

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding

RERK

Corporate administrative
services

ERTHRERS

Investment holding

RERK

Apparel retail business
RETEXH

Apparel retail business
REZERH
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

4. ARRAFEMBLARI 2B #)

Principal activities

IERH

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion ownership
establishment and ~ Issued and paid-up/ interest and voting power
operation registered ordinary share held by the Company
Name AR/ ERTRAR RAAREREREER
=t RIREERY /HREER RERRLA
2017 2016
“E-tE ZF0F
China Education Media Limited BVI USSI 100%
PEHEEEERAA RERZBEE XX
ERFAERERBAE PRC USD3,000,000 100%
BRAE i 30000005 7C
(Note a) (Fif ¥ a)
TF Treasury Activities Limited BVI US$I 100%
RERKEE XN
Link-Hospital Limited BVI US| 100%
(Formerly known as Master Goal EBRAESE IET
Holdings Limited)
(718 Master Goal Holdings Limited)
Link-Hospital Intemational Limited Hong Kong HKS 100%
ENERARDA &b BT
(Formerly known as Great Delight
International Limited)
(FERBEARBRAA)
Beijing Life Heafthcare Technology PRC USD4,000,000 =
Company Limited* (“Bejjing Lianhe”) & 4000000% 7T

TRENERERRKARAA
(MEmEM])
(Note a) (Fit & a)

*  For identification purpose only {£ £ 3 51|
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Investment holding

RERK

Education software products
business and related

services business
HEOHERER
RIEBRBER

Securities trading and
investment

EREERRE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Healthcare services

R E R
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 34, AARIZEMEB AR ZFHE (@)

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion ownership
establishment and  Issued and paid-up/ interest and voting power
operation registered ordinary share held by the Company
Name KL/ BETRME KDAFEHEEESR  Principal activities
2R RURBEHE /HREER RRRELA IRER
2017 2016
“B-tfF ZT-5F
Tianjin Life Healthcare Software PRC RMBI,000,000 - Healthcare services
Development Company Limited* i AR 1,000,0007T e B MR %
REENSAREARLT
(Note ¢) (i3 c)
Life Healthcare (Beijing) PRC RMBI,000,000 —  Healthcare services
Company Limited* (“Life Heafthcare”) AR 1,0000007T BERSE
BHNER)BRMBEARAA
(ERER)
(Notes c and d) (Fif 5 c Jod)
Beijing Life Heafthcare Clinical PRC RMB6,000,000 - Healthcare services
Laboratory Limited* & AR 6000000 7T e B MR %
IR ANEERBFARAT
(Notes c and e) (Fit i c Kee)
Hangzhou Life Healthcare Clinical PRC RMB6,000,000 - Healthcare services
Laboratory Limited* & AR 6000000 7T e B MR %
RNENE R ARAT
(Notes c and e) (Fit i c Kee)
Guangzhou Life Healthcare Clinical PRC RMB6,000,000 —  Healthcare services
Laboratory Limited* & A K% 6,000000 7T e B MR %
BN ENEBRRERZARAT
(Notes c and e) (fit i c Ree)
Allied Kingdom Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = Money lending business
BEERARDA &b 1007 7T BEX%

(Note f) (P 5Ef)

*  For identification purpose only {£ {% 3 51|
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Notes:

@

152

The companies were established as wholly foreign owned enterprises under laws of the
PRC.

The Company does not have equity interest in the registered capital of £ 55 8 1 as
it is owned by employees of the Group. Pursuant to certain agreements entered into
between the owners of % 5 ¥ /7 and the Group, the owners of & 55 K /7 agreed
to assign the power to appoint and remove all the members of the board of directors
of, and to govern the financial and operating policies of % 5 B /7 to the Group and
to transfer all beneficial interests of B 55 [ 77 to the Group. Accordingly, & 55 &
71 is treated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its results, assets and
liabilities are consolidated with those of the Group.

The companies were established as limited liability companies under laws of the PRC.

No equity interests of Life Healthcare was held by the Company. Beijing Lianhe a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the VIE Agreements with Life
Healthcare and its then shareholders in April 2016. Notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, through the VIE Agreements, Beijing Lianhe is able to exercise control
over Life Healthcare Group by way of controlling the voting rights of Life Healthcare,
governing their financial and operating policies, appointing and removing the majority
of the members of their controlling authorities, casting the majority of votes at meeting
of such authorities and deriving economic benefits from Life Healthcare Group.
Accordingly, Life Healthcare Group is accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group since
the VIE Agreements signed on 5 April 2016. As all shareholders of Life Healthcare
were contracting parties to the VIE Agreements, 100% of the financial results of Life
Healthcare Group is attributable to the Group.

These companies are subsidiaries directly owned and controlled by Life Healthcare.

This company started money lending business in November 2016.

4, KRR TEMBRARAZHERE#E)

ZERARBEPBEENKLBINEE
Bl%E-

ARAREER N ZEMEA DY E
BERAERZ REAAZLABAR
BEEHA -REFSHENHEAAL
AEERAIVZETHE BEHN
BEARENAREERZERESR
MEESEREUREETER N2
MEREBRECEN YAAKE
BRESR N 2MERER - Rt
HERNREREAFZ2EMBRTF -
HEE  BERABERAREGAARK -

ERARBPEENKLAERE

e

0

Ry

puj

APARVEHEEMBEZBE R
—E-RENA ARAZEZENE
AR RENEBENBEREREER 2
BRRAT M VIER & ° & E R AEME R A
BAE EERENEEBEHEMN
BE/REEMEHENEREE
ECHPBREERR RARESR
HERAB I ABIKEYRNEHEA
Brea tRAZHEEURNENE
BEARERMLENSZ Bt - B=F
—ANFNARBERTVERZE  EM
BEEEERAEBZHBARGIK -
AREBENBEZ2BREAVERZ
AT ENBEEE 2 100%9 5%
EEBRAEE-

LERRAREMBRERER RIZH
ZHBRA -

WARARZE-—REF+—-ARREE
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

35.

(Continued)
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities in issue at any time during
the vears ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries had material non-controlling
interests during the years ended 3| March 2017 and 2016.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 May 2017, the Company as the subscriber entered into a subscription
agreement with a fund manager, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to subscribe for an aggregate amount of HK$20 million of the fund units.
Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 4
May 2017.

On 10 May 2017, the Group acquired 70% equity interest in RK)&3
28 P BPR A R) Tianjin Lianhe Clinical Laboratory Limited*
(formerly known as XEZEEB2RBAAR QA (Tianjin Kangxin
Clinical Laboratory Limited*, incorporated in Tianjin of PRC, “Tianjin
Laboratory")) from an independent third party, and Tianjin Laboratory
holds a Practice License of Medical Institution* (EBEMEEIN ST O] E)
and provides genetic testing services to its customers. The acquisition of
Tianjin Laboratory do not constitute discloseable transaction or connected
transaction under Chapter |4 and Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

*  For identification purpose only £ 2 8 51|

34.

35.

ARPBRETEMBRARZHFE#E)

MEMBRAANABE-_T—LER
—E-RE=ZRA=t-BLEER
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EFEHHBRE
Results - |
Tumover from continuing operations FELEEB EET

Loss for the year from continuing operations

TERERBARERR

Loss for the year from discontinued operations B 42 |t ¥/ 2 AFE E1B

Loss for the year AEEBR

Loss for the year attributable to: WTATREREEEE:
Owners of the Company ARAEEA
Non-controlling interest FRRER

Assets and Liabilities BERAE

Total assets BEME

Total labities AEAE

Capital and reserves RER&E

Equity attributable to ATATEf#S :

— Owners of the Company —ARAEEA

— Non-controlling interest — bR

154

2017 2016 215 2014 2013
-t B —Z-1f _F-Qmf —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T TEL
5114 8398 22469 25,149

(34337) (45,333) (10570)  (109.837)

- - (40,234) (16,150)

(34337) (45333)  (110804) (125987

(34,337) (45333)  (110804) (125987

(34,337) (45333)  (110804) (125987

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZB8-t§ ZE-RE ZZ-1f -ZE-RE -B-=%£
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TiEx T FHTL FATL TER
86,146 113258 166,801 177,624

(21,331) (10797) (18227) (35218)

64815 102,461 148,574 142,406

64815 102,46 148,574 142,406

64815 102,461 148,574 142,406




ENEREREEHRAS
017 FFEWME

Information About the Financial Position of the Company
BEAARBHBAMR 2 EHR

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end RBFEHK KAGBHERIRZER

of the reporting period includes: B
2017 2016
—g-tf —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Non-current assets F(RBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—KWBAR 2 LETRE =
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries A ENGIE S 48,883
Other receivables H 4 e W 8 72
Bank and cash balances RIT MR & Ek 15,897
Total assets EEHAE 64,852
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to subsidiaries ANLENGE S (31,500)
Other payables H At FE 5 5RIE (1,201)
(32,701)
Net assets BEEFRE 32,151
Capital and reserves IR A K fik 4
Share capital (See note 27) B (R B EE27) 21,444
Reserves fE1E 10,707
Total equity EREH 31,151
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BEREA QBB BERR2E R

Movements of the Company's reserve are disclosed as follows: RKAGIREEZEESHENDT !
Share  Contributed Other  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total

Bhe® HARR HtREF RHER fst
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TRn  TExn TR  TEn @ TEx

Asat | Apri 2015 RZT-R¥NA—-A 849,351 167,780 5518 (949,600) 73,049
Loss for the year AEEHE - - - (62342) (62.342)
Asat 31 March 2016 RZB-AF=A=1-R
Loss for the year AEEBE
lssue of shares for acquisition of an associate RhE-RBELARTRE
lssue of shares under rights issue BREERZETRE
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares TR EIER ZHA
Total comprehensive income and expense AEERERERATEE
for the year
Asat 31 March 2017 RZF-tF=A=1-R
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